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Introduction
.

Be Freshwater Friendly:

Renewable Water Resources’ Be Freshwater Friendly campaign educates the
community on how small changes in our day-to-day actions can have a great impact
on our local rivers, lakes and streams. Being friendly to freshwater sources protects
aquatic life and preserves our watershed for the long-term.

BeFreshwaterFriendly.org
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introduction

Introduction

Be Freshwater Friendly:
One of our initiatives under the Be Freshwater Friendly campaign is Pet Poop Etiquette.

N FRESH
Pet waste is not something people typically think of as pollution, but unscooped
waste can be washed into our rivers, lakes and streams. Pet waste contains Nitrogen, WAI ‘ER

Phosphorus, parasites and fecal bacteria which can pollute our water bodies.
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renewable water resources

October 30, 2013

To Renewable Water Resources Board of Commissioners, Bondholders and Customers:

The management and staff of Renewable Water Resources (the “Agency”) are pleased to present the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

The CAFR consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Agency for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2013. Accordingly, management assumes full responsibility for the accuracy and
completeness of the information provided in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed
both to protect the Agency’s assets from loss, theft or misuse, and to compile sufficient reliable information
for the preparation of the Agency’s financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (“GAAP”). Since the cost of internal controls should not outweigh the benefits, the Agency’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert
to the best of our knowledge and belief that this financial report is complete and reliable in all material

respects.

The Agency’s Board of Commissioners (the “Commission’) requires an annual audit by an independent
firm of certified public accountants. Cherry Bekaert, LLP performed this function and conducted the
engagement in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Cherry Bekaert, LLP concluded, based upon the audit, that there
was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion on the Agency’s financial statements for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis in the form of

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) to accompany the basic financial statements. This letter
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of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The Agency’s

MD&A can be found in the financial section of this report.

PROFILE OF THE AGENCY

The Agency is a special purpose district originally created in 1925 under the name of the “Greater
Greenville Sewer District” by Act No. 362 of the Acts of the General Assembly of the State of South
Carolina. As originally constituted, Act No. 362 provided for the Greater Greenville Sewer District to be
governed by a commission known as the “Greater Greenville Sewer District Commission.” In 1926, by Act
No. 784, the Commission of the Greater Greenville Sewer District was empowered “to establish, extend,
enlarge, maintain, conduct and operate sewer systems, sewer lines and sewer mains; to make any and all
regulations which they consider necessary to effectuate this Act; and generally to do all things necessary to
create and maintain a sewerage system in the District.” The name, Greater Greenville Sewer District was
changed to Western Carolina Regional Sewer Authority by Act No. 393 of 1974, and changed to
Renewable Water Resources by Act No. 102 of 2009. In 2010, by Act No. 311, the Agency’s authority was
expanded to use, market and set rates related to the generation of goods and energy derived from by-
products of the treatment process and alternate sources. The Agency’s activities are accounted for as an

enterprise fund and costs are recovered through user fees.

The Agency is the largest wastewater treatment provider in the region, serving much of Greenville County
and portions of Anderson, Laurens, Pickens and Spartanburg Counties, which are commonly referred to as
the Upstate. The Saluda River, Reedy River and Enoree River basins are the three drainage basins in the
Agency’s service area. Wastewater within the region is collected from 18 public partners that construct and
maintain approximately 2,065 miles of sewer collection lines. These collection lines connect into the
Agency’s 341 mile interceptor system. The Agency owns and operates eight water resource recovery

facilities (“WRRF”) which treat an average flow of 39.7 million gallons per day.

A nine-member Commission governs the Agency. Each member of the Commission is appointed to a four-
year term by the Governor upon recommendation of the respective county legislative delegation. Seven
members are residents of Greenville County, whereas the remaining two are required to live in Anderson

and Laurens Counties.

The Agency is dedicated to enhancing the quality of life in its service area by providing high quality
wastewater treatment services. In addition to providing wastewater treatment services, the Agency is

focused on long-term sustainability strategies such as generating renewable products from methane gas and
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biosolids which are by-products of the treatment process. The mission of the organization is to protect the
public health and water quality of the Upstate waterways while providing the necessary infrastructure to
support the regional economy. To better reflect our mission, the Agency’s facilities are now referred to as

water resource recovery facilities.
FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in this report is most meaningful when it is considered in relation to the
economic and social environment in which the Agency operates.

Regional Economy

Greenville County is strategically located on the 1-85 corridor between Atlanta and Charlotte, as well as
almost equal distance between New York and Miami. As a result, Greenville has become an established
coordination center for east coast transportation. The City of Greenville is centrally located within
Greenville County and is the fourth largest city in the state. Additionally, Greenville is in the center of the

largest metropolitan statistical area in South Carolina.

Greenville is often admired for its progressive government, favorable business climate and low cost of
living. Greenville’s high quality of life and main street appeal is demonstrated through our pedestrian
friendly and restaurant abundant downtown. For many years now, Greenville has generated national
recognition and accumulated accolades. Examples of recognition received during the past fiscal year are
listed below:

e ‘Is Greenville the Next Big Food City of the South?” Esquire.com, March 8, 2013

o Greenville selected as one of ‘Tastiest Towns in the South’ Southern Living, April 2013

e TripAdvisor named Falls Park the Ninth-Best Park in the United States

As of July 2013, Greenville County’s unemployment rate, not seasonally adjusted, was 6.6%. The
unemployment rate was down from 7.7% for the same period in 2012. This is an indicator that Greenville’s
economy continues to improve. Greenville’s unemployment rate remains significantly lower than the
overall South Carolina rate of 8.1%, which can be attributed to Greenville’s economic development

strategy.

Greenville is committed to strategic planning and development and is regarded as an innovative and
entrepreneurial leader in South Carolina. Companies continue to be attracted to Greenville’s pro-business
attitude, location and workforce quality. In fact, Greenville has earned the reputation as one of the top

metropolitan areas in the world for engineering talent per capita. Greenville is known to have a progressive
5



local government which has formed partnerships with companies and universities to promote economic

development.

An example of Greenville’s progressive government is the Electric Vehicle Ecosystem Pilot Project which
was awarded the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s Clean Air Excellence Award. The program
created the first electric vehicle ecosystem in the world and involved 30 public and private partners. The

program has been called “a model for the future” by Bradford Swann, a spokesman for G.E.

One of the most prominent partnerships is Clemson University’s International Center of Automotive
Research (“CU-ICAR?”), the result of a joint effort between BMW, Michelin North America, the City of
Greenville, the State of South Carolina and others. The 250-acre advanced-technology campus, located
within the city limits of Greenville, was designed to bridge the gaps between research, technology and
commercial application. CU-ICAR is composed of five technology neighborhoods, each designed uniquely
for optimizing an innovative and collaborative environment. Additionally, the South Carolina Technology
and Aviation Center (“SCTAC”), which is jointly owned by the City of Greenville and Greenville County,
boasts tenants such as 3M, Lockheed Martin, Michelin and Stevens Aviation. CU-ICAR and SCTAC

partnered to develop next-generation (i.e. electric or biofuel powered) transportation systems.

Greenville County is home to 98 Fortune 500 companies and has more foreign investment per capita than
any other region in the United States. During fiscal year 2013, the Greenville Area Development
Corporation announced 13 expansions and/or relocations representing an estimated investment greater than

$100.4 million and creating nearly 500 jobs.

Industry
The Agency has slightly more than 100 industrial customers that it bills directly and classifies as either
significant industrial users or low-volume dischargers. An industry is classified as a significant industrial
user by meeting one of the following criteria:
e issubject to National Categorical Treatment Standards
o discharges an average of at least 25,000 gallons per day of process wastewater to the Public Owned
Treatment Works (“POTW?)

o discharges five percent or more of any design or treatment capacity of the POTW



o is found by the Agency, the South Carolina Department of Health & Environmental Control, or the
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to have a reasonable potential for adversely affecting, either
singly or in combination with other discharges, the wastewater disposal system, the quality of

sludge, the system’s effluent quality, the receiving stream, or air emissions generated by the system

Conversely, a low-volume discharger is a regulated industry that does not meet any of the above criteria.
Currently, the Agency has 70 industries classified as significant industrial users. All significant industrial
users must obtain a permit to discharge to the POTW. Significant industrial users pay fixed-base fees,
volume charges, and surcharges for industrial biological oxygen demand and total suspended solid

discharges.

Listed below are the Agency’s largest industrial customers by revenue generation in fiscal year 2013.

Ten Largest Industrial Accounts in 2013

Percentage of total

Industry Revenue operating revenues
Columbia Farms 1,309,694 1.75%

Poultry processing

Furman University 311,397 0.42%
Higher education

Cryovac Sealed Air Corporation 301,315 0.40%
Food packaging services

Cytec Carbon Fibers LLC 289,062 0.39%
Carbon fiber and graphite manufacturer

Safety Components Fabric Technology 260,114 0.35%
Technical fabric manufacturer

Michelin North America 259,922 0.35%
Tire manufacturer

Kemet Simpsonville 217,393 0.29%
Electronic capacitor manufacturing

3M Company 214,629 0.29%
Film and tape manufacturer

Cliffstar LLC 210,171 0.28%
Non-alcoholic beverage manufacturer

Roy Metal & Finishing Company 209,148 0.28%
Electroplating



Long-Term Financial Planning

The Agency performs long-range planning, such as the 20-year strategic plan (the “Upstate Roundtable
Plan”). The current plan was adopted in 2009 and was built upon the 1994 plan. The goal of the Upstate
Roundtable Plan was to align regional wastewater infrastructure with the Upstate’s projected growth, while
promoting environmental sustainability. The completion of the Piedmont Regional WRRF signifies the
attainment of all capital planning needs identified in the 1994 plan. The current plan identifies more than
$800 million in capital improvement needs and more than 70 recommendations as a guide for growth and
development through the year 2030. Additional information on the Upstate Roundtable Plan, as well as the

final report, can be accessed at www.upstateroundtable.org.

In addition, the Agency maintains a rolling five-year capital improvements program. The development of
this program involves evaluating the recommendations identified in the Upstate Roundtable Plan to current
growth projections and regulatory requirements, as well as project affordability. In fiscal year 2011, the
Commission adopted the first five years of the 20-year Wastewater Capital Planning & Rate Study which
identified the appropriate sources to fund these capital improvement needs. Since the Agency’s revenues are
solely derived from user fees, it is critical that the rates remain sufficient to meet operational expenses, as
well as the above five- and 20-year plans. The Agency continues to monitor and report its implementation

progress of the Upstate Roundtable Plan’s recommendations via the Agency’s Business Plan.

Accountability and Transparency

Our website, www.rewaonline.org, is utilized to publish both financial and non-financial information to
our rate payers and other interested parties to enhance the public’s understanding and promote interest. The
site enables us to disseminate information in a timely and effective manner and includes a description of the
wastewater treatment process, approved rates, procurement and employment opportunities, new customer
information, Annual Reports, Sewer Use Regulation and upcoming events. The website also includes links
to the Upstate Roundtable Plan and the Agency’s community outreach initiatives such as Project Rx and Be
Freshwater Friendly. The Agency uses the website and local newspapers to communicate public comment
and hearing notifications, as well as Commission meeting agendas. The Agency strives to be transparent

and accountable both operationally and fiscally.

Budget

The Agency’s Commission annually adopts an operating and capital budget prior to the new fiscal year.
The budget is prepared on a cash basis, as required by the state of South Carolina, and on an accrual basis
for internal purposes. The budget provides the basis for reporting, which management uses to monitor and
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control the Agency’s spending. Management receives budget to actual reports monthly and is responsible

for providing variance explanations to the Accounting Department.

The budget is approved by the Commission after a public hearing and upon recommendation of the
Executive Director. The approved budget will remain in effect for the entire fiscal year and can only be

revised with a public hearing and Commission approval.

Major Initiatives

For several years, the Agency has utilized the strategies and reporting tools set forth in the Effective Utility
Management Primer (The “Primer”) and the Balanced Scorecard. The Primer identifies ten attributes of
effectively managed utilities and five keys to management success. In fiscal year 2011, we shared an
example of each of the ten attributes and last year we highlighted the strides we had made within the
attribute of Product Quality. Our goal is to continually improve our operations, stewardship and service
capabilities, which is why this year we would like to focus on the technological and educational investments
we have made to evolving water quality. In fiscal year 2013, the Agency made a significant investment in
the construction of Piedmont Regional WRRF. This regional facility introduces the highest level of
treatment at the Agency and allows the Agency to consolidate resources by merging four aging facilities
(the existing Piedmont, Grove Creek and the municipal plants of Pelzer and West Pelzer). Additionally, the
Agency has invested in public education initiatives focused on raising awareness about preventing nutrient

and stormwater pollution.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Organizational Awards

Eight of the Agency’s facilities: Durbin Creek, Georges Creek, Gilder Creek, Grove Creek, Lower Reedy,
Marietta, Pelham and Piedmont, as well as multiple departments: Administrative and Engineering Services,
Industrial Pretreatment, Instrumentation, Laboratory, Maintenance and Solids Management, won the South

Carolina Chamber of Commerce Safety Awards.

Five of the Agency’s facilities: Georges Creek, Grove Creek, Lower Reedy, Marietta and Piedmont won the

South Carolina Department of Health & Environmental Control’s Outstanding Facility Award.

All of the Agency’s facilities received Peak Performance Awards from NACWA. NACWA recognizes
member agencies for excellence in wastewater treatment as measured by their compliance with their

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) permit. Awards are made in three categories:
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Silver Awards for member facilities with five or fewer NPDES permit violations in a calendar year; Gold
Awards for member facilities that meet all NPDES permit limits during a calendar year; and Platinum
Awards for facilities that have sustained 100 percent compliance for five consecutive years or more.
Georges Creek, Grove Creek, Lower Reedy, Marietta and Mauldin Road facilities received Platinum level
awards; Durbin Creek, Pelham and Piedmont received Gold level awards; and Gilder Creek received a

Silver level award.

The Agency won the Excellence in Collection System Operations Award from the Water Environment
Association of South Carolina (WEASC).

The Agency’s Operations Challenge team placed first at both the National (within their division) and State

environmental conferences.

The Piedmont Regional WRRF won the Award of Merit in the Water\Environmental category from the

Engineering National Review Southeast.

Individual Awards
Ralph Hendricks, Commissioner from 1991 to 2012, received the prestigious Order of the Silver Crescent

award from Governor Nikki Haley.

Glen McManus, Director of Operations, received the Arthur Sidney Bedell and William D. Hatfield awards

from the Water Environment Federation.

Bryan Kohart, P.E., Senior Environmental Engineer, received the WEASC 2012 Engineer of the Year
Award.

Toby Humphries, TV and Cleaning Supervisor, received the WEASC Dennis Pittman Collection System
Award.

Dargan Evans, Facility Operator, received the WEASC Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator of the Year
Award.

Financial Awards
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”) awarded a

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Agency for its comprehensive
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annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This was the 20th consecutive year that the
Agency has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily-readable and efficiently-organized comprehensive annual financial
report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements. Receipt of this award represents the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental

accounting and financial reporting.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the

GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The Agency was also awarded the GFOA’s prestigious Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular
Annual Financial Reporting for the 15th consecutive year. We believe that our current Annual Report to the
Community continues to meet the award requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA for evaluation.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
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Accounting Department along with the cooperation of staff from the Agency’s other departments.

6%.(,7-’0,“.;9.

Ray T. Orvin Jr., DBA

Executive Director

MD.W

Cathy D. Caldwell, CPA

Administrative Finance Director

"o, R Dovaie
Patricia R. Dennis, CPA

Controller



Renewable Water Resources
2013
Board of Commissioners

Name Date of Original Appointment Current Term Expires Principal Occupation
J. D. Martin 12/31/01 12/31/13 Businessman
Chairman

L. Gary Gilliam 12/30/06 12/30/14 Businessman

Vice Chairman

Michael B. Bishop 02/24/06 12/31/13 Businessman
Secretary/Treasurer
John V. Boyette, Jr. 02/26/04 12/31/15 Businessman
George W. Fletcher 01/31/01 12/31/16 Businessman
Daniel K. Holliday 01/01/13 01/01/17 Businessman
Billy D. Merritt, Jr. 06/06/84 12/31/13 Enrollment Counselor
Ray C. Overstreet 12/31/10 12/31/14 Businessman
Willie J. Whittaker, Jr. 01/14/85 12/31/16 Retired Science Consultant
Directors
Ray T. Orvin, Jr., DBA Executive Director
Charles L. Logue, PE Technical Services Director
Blake A. Visin Information System Director
L. Glen McManus Operations Director
Cathy D. Caldwell, CPA Administrative Finance Director

Barbara S. Wilson, SPHR Human Resources Director



0€ [9Aa7T 9peID
Jabeuey weabold Juswiestlaid [euisnpug

)
T€E 1997 8peI 0€ |8n87] 8pel
Jabeue|n 1uswabeuely spijos ) Jabeuey Aiojesoqge]
M
TE |99 9pelD V€ [9A87 9pelo
Jabeuey doys soueusiule| ) 10308dsU| UOKINIISUOD J0IUSS
B
¥€ [9A7 8pelD
T€E 1997 8peI 0€ |8ne7 8pel
Jabeuely SW8ISAS Uo1193|[0D ) Jabeuey Buiseyaund 433u1bu3 [eluaWI0IAUT [IALD JoluaS
B GE [9A97] apelD
0€ [9A87 /peI9 Z€ [9As7 /peI9 0€ [9A87] 3pel9 JosiA1adng Burissuibug
Jafeuey uoneIUBWINIISU| Jabeuey suonressdQ ueld ) 13]]043U0D
B
Y€ [9A87] apel Y€ [9A87] 8pel 0€ 1897 8pei TE |8ne7] 8peI T 1907 8peio
JafeueN SwalsAS uorrew.oju| 132140 [043U0D S$8904d J0IUSS ) Jabeue s92uN0say UBWNH Jabeuey 19BJ1U0D 8IAISS JBWO0ISND Jabeuepy Burassuibug
€Y |9n97] 8peI € 19N97 8peio 8€ 19N97 8peio 8€ 19197 8peI G 1997 8peI
10193410 SW8ISAS uonew.Ioyu| 1019241 suoiressdO 10193110 $894N0S9y UewnH 1019241 89UBUIH SAIRIISIUILIPY 1019241 S90IAISS [e21UY29 |

[

I

I

I

I

£2 1aA9 9peID
11 JURISISSY SAIRIISIUILIPY

1039311 9AIINJ89X3

SI3UOISSILUIWIOD

Jo paeog

ey |euoneziuebip

S304dNOS3Y d3LVM F19VMINTA

13



This page was left blank intentionally



financial

—h
S
Q
S
0.
QL

Project Rx: pRD JECT

Project Rx: A River Remedy is a medication take-back event held by Renewable

Water Resources and several community partner organizations. It offers the °

Upstate community a free and safe way to properly dispose of prescription and a Rlver Remedy
over-the-counter medications.

aRiverRemedy.org
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As of June 30, 2013, Project Rx has held six drug take-back events, collecting
a combined weight of 7,534 Ibs of unwanted medications for proper disposal.
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C."! Cherry Bekaert*”

CPAs & Advisors

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Greenville, South Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of Renewable Water Resources (the
“Agency”) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, which collectively
comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Agency, as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 18 through 29 and the Schedule of Funding Progress — Other
Postemployment Benefits on page 57 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Agency’s financial statement. The introductory section and statistical section
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 3,
2013 on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Cﬁ\wm% Bolhaod [P

Greenville, South Carolina
September 3, 2013
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Renewable Water Resources
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Renewable Water Resources (the “Agency”), we present this narrative overview and
analysis of financial performance for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. Please consider this
information in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e Financial position continues to be strong as net position increased by $9.0 million, or 3.2%, to
$289.1 million as a result of current year operations, as compared to an increase of 4.7% from
2011 to 2012.

e Construction was completed on the Piedmont Regional Water Resource Recovery Facility
(“WRRF”) during fiscal year 2013. The completion of Piedmont Regional WRRF signifies the
attainment of all capital planning needs identified in the 1994 Upstate Roundtable plan. The
facility is located on a 100-acre site on the Saluda River in Anderson County and consolidates
four aging facilities: two smaller facilities of the Agency and the municipal plants of Pelzer and
West Pelzer. The 4.0 million gallons per day (“MGD”) facility costs approximately $46.5
million and includes screening, grit removal, diurnal and wet weather equalization, biological
treatment via membrane bio-reactor, ultraviolet disinfection, re-aeration, and membrane solid
thickening.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements of
the Agency. The basic financial statements include the Statements of Net Position; the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statements of Cash Flows; with the related
notes to provide additional details. These basic financial statements provide information about the
activities and performance of the Agency using accounting methods similar to those found in the private
sector.

The Statements of Net Position present information on the Agency’s assets, plus deferred outflows of
resources, less liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
Agency’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present the current and prior fiscal
years’ results of operations and can be used to determine whether the Agency is recovering costs
through user fees and charges.

The Statements of Cash Flows report cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash and cash
equivalents for the current and prior fiscal years. This statement may be used to determine sources of
cash, uses of cash and changes in cash from operating, capital and related financing and investing
activities. The statement may be useful in assessing the Agency’s ability to meet short-term obligations.

(Continued)



Overview of the Financial Statements, continued

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information essential to a
full understanding of information reported in the statements. The notes present information about the
Agency’s accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, significant risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events, if applicable.

Net Position

The Agency’s overall financial position improved during fiscal year 2013 as net position grew 3.2%.
Net position in fiscal years 2013, 2012, and 2011 totaled $289.1 million, $280.1 million, and $267.5
million, an increase of $9.0 million, $12.6 million, and $7.6 million, respectively. The largest portion of
the Agency’s net position, approximately 71.7%, reflects the Agency’s investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery and equipment) less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.
The Agency uses these capital assets to provide services to ratepayers. Although the Agency’s
investment in capital assets is reported net of debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, as these capital assets cannot be liquidated to pay these liabilities.

An additional $28.0 million or 9.7% of the Agency’s net position are restricted funds (restrictions
established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements). In fiscal years 2012
and 2011, restricted net position decreased $12.6 million or 31.7% and $8.4 million or 17.4%,
respectively. In fiscal year 2013, restricted net position increased $0.8 million primarily due to an
increase in amounts restricted for debt service. Approximately $12.2 million of the decrease in fiscal
year 2012 is due to recapture of the debt service reserve fund: $8.6 million from advance refunding of
the Series 2005 bonds and $3.6 million from retroactive loan policy changes by the South Carolina
Water Quality Revolving Fund Authority.

The third and final component of net position is unrestricted which may be used to fund day to day
operations or capital projects. In fiscal year 2013, the Agency’s unrestricted net position totaled $53.7
million.

(Continued)
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Net Position, continued
A summary of the Agency’s Statement of Net Position is presented in Table A-1.

Table A-1
Condensed Statements of Net Position (in millions)
For the Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
Current and non-current assets $ 63.3 $ 77.2 $ 65.8
Restricted assets 28.0 34.2 64.8
Capital assets 487.5 484.8 465.9
Total assets 578.8 596.2 596.5
Current liabilities 29.6 37.7 24.7
Non-current liabilities 260.1 278.4 304.3
Total liabilities 289.7 316.1 329.0
Net investment in capital assets 207.4 183.9 169.9
Restricted 28.0 27.2 39.8
Unrestricted 53.7 69.0 57.8
Total net position $289.1 $280.1 $267.5

Revenues

Table A-2 reveals that the Agency’s total revenues decreased by $0.1 million in fiscal year 2013 to
$74.9 million. The Agency’s total revenues increased $4.8 million in fiscal year 2012, to $75.0 million
from $70.2 million in 2011. The Agency’s regulations provide for a sewer use charge that funds the
operation of the system, provides a source of funds to repay liabilities and provides for future
maintenance of the Agency’s facilities. The current user fee regulation in effect for fiscal year 2013 was
adopted December 6, 2010, and became effective March 1, 2013, with subsequent increases in monthly
base fees and volume charges effective on March 1, 2014 and 2015.

Domestic and commercial customer revenues decreased 1.0% to $61.9 million in fiscal year 2013. The
decrease was a result of reduced consumption despite an approximate 4.0% rate increase and customer
growth of 2.6%. In fiscal years 2012 and 2011, domestic and commercial revenues increased 4.5% and
7.2%, respectively. The increases in fiscal years 2012 and 2011 are attributable to scheduled rate
increases and customer growth.

(Continued)
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Revenues, continued

In fiscal year 2013, industrial revenues decreased slightly to $6.7 million from $6.8 million in fiscal year
2012. Industrial revenues increased $0.5 million, or 7.9%, in fiscal year 2011.

New account fees, based on water meter size, increased 17.0%, 74.1% and 12.5% in fiscal years 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively, a sign that the economy continues to improve.

Interest and other non-operating revenues declined to $0.3 million in fiscal year 2013 and remained flat
at $0.5 million in fiscal years 2012 and 2011 due to depressed market conditions.

Table A-2
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (in millions)
For the Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011

Operating revenues
Domestic and commercial customers $ 619 $ 625 $ 59.8
Industrial customers 6.7 6.8 6.8
New account fee 55 4.7 2.7
Septic haulers and other 0.5 0.5 0.4
Interest and other non-operating revenues 0.3 0.5 0.5
Total revenues 74.9 75.0 70.2

Operating expenses
Operations 13.7 12.8 12.0
Technical services 3.0 2.9 2.9
Collection system 29 2.7 2.6
IS and instrumentation 1.6 1.5 1.4
Human resources 2.1 2.0 1.8
Administration finance 5.7 5.4 5.0
Total operating expenses before depreciation 29.0 27.3 25.7
Depreciation 26.1 24.1 24.0
Total operating expenses 55.1 51.4 49.7
Interest, amortization & other non-operating expenses 10.8 11.6 12.9
Total expenses 65.9 63.0 62.6
Capital project cost reimbursements - 0.6 -
Increase in net position 9.0 12.6 7.6
Total net position, beginning of year 280.1 267.5 259.9

Total net position, end of year $ 289.1 $280.1 $267.5
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Capital Contributions

Project reimbursement occurs when the Agency enters into a contract with one or more entities to
construct facilities and/or sewer conveyance systems that will be mutually beneficial. There were no
participating entities in fiscal years 2013 and 2011.

The Agency received two grants in fiscal year 2012 totaling $0.6 million: one for $0.5 million from the
US Department of Energy, administered by the State of South Carolina to produce electricity using
digester gas, as well as one for $0.1 million through the Budget and Control Board Office of Local
Government to increase energy efficiency at the Agency’s facilities.

EXxpenses

Total expenses in fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 totaled $65.9 million, $63.0 million and $62.6
million, respectively. In fiscal year 2013, total expenses increased by $2.9 million or 4.6%. Total
expenses increased by $0.4 million or 0.6% in fiscal year 2012. In fiscal year 2013, $1.7 million of the
increase is primarily attributable to increases in chemicals, repairs and maintenance, employee related
expenses, as well as carbon media replacement. An increase of $2.0 million in depreciation also
contributed to the overall increase in fiscal year 2013. These increases were offset by a decrease of $0.8
million in interest, amortization and other non-operating expenses. In fiscal year 2012, the increase is the
net effect of a $1.7 million increase in total operating expense due to increases in billing expense,
electricity, salaries and fringes, as well as depreciation. These increases were reduced by a $1.3 million
decrease in non-operating expenses, which is primarily attributable to decreases in interest expense.
Operating expenses before depreciation increased by 6.2% in fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Depreciation expense increased $2.0 million or 8.2% in fiscal year 2013. Non-project expenses can vary
considerably each fiscal year. These expenses are one-time costs that are non-operational and are not
capitalizable.

Capital Assets

Net capital assets being depreciated increased by $55.8 million or 7.9% to $764.4 million in fiscal year
2013. Approximately $46.5 million of the increase pertains to the capitalization of the newly constructed
Piedmont Regional WRRF. In fiscal year 2012, net capital assets increased by a modest $2.9 million, as
$41.0 million remained in construction in progress. At the end of fiscal year 2013, the Agency had
invested $487.5 million in infrastructure, which includes land, rights-of-ways, trunk lines, buildings,
operating equipment, water resource recovery facility equipment and vehicles as shown in Table A-3
and in Note 5 of the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

(Continued)
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Capital Assets, continued

Table A-3
Capital Assets (in millions)
For the Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 36 $ 35 $ 35
Construction in progress 10.1 41.0 4.1
Total capital assets not being depreciated 13.7 445 7.6
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 341.2 318.0 317.1
Trunk lines 326.3 305.2 303.4
Water resource recovery facility equipment 90.0 82.9 83.0
Operational equipment 5.7 1.3 1.1
Office furniture 04 0.5 0.5
Vehicles 0.8 0.7 0.6
Total capital assets being depreciated 764.4 708.6 705.7
Less: accumulated depreciation 290.6 268.3 247.4
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 473.8 440.3 458.3
Net capital assets $ 487.5 $484.8 $ 465.9

Capital improvement program

The Commission assembled a community-wide volunteer collaboration to develop an
environmentally sound long-term strategy for the Agency. The collaboration was named the Upstate
Roundtable and was tasked with aligning the regional wastewater system capacity and infrastructure
with projected growth, while promoting environmental sustainability. Initially convened in 1994
and reconvened in 2008, this strategic planning group brought together over 60 community,
governmental and industry leaders to develop a 20-year plan to guide the Agency. The 1994 Upstate
Roundtable Plan identified needs of approximately $326.5 million for growth in the Reedy, Saluda
and Enoree basins. In fiscal year 2013, all projects that were identified in this plan were completed.
The 2008 Upstate Roundtable Plan identified $809.7 million of projects which have been
incorporated into the Agency’s capital improvements program (“CIP”).

(Continued)
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Capital Assets, continued

Capital improvement program, continued

The Agency maintains a fluid five year CIP that merges the Agency’s strategic plan with the
ongoing objective of maintaining compliance with South Carolina Department of Health &
Environmental Control regulations and National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit
limitations. The CIP calls for upgrades to three of the Agency’s water resource recovery facilities,
numerous line and conveyance system projects, as well as various green energy and reuse projects
that support the recently adopted Upstate Roundtable Plan.

In addition to the Piedmont Regional WRRF project, major capital expenditures in fiscal year 2013
focused on various line and conveyance rehabilitation projects.

Capital improvement expenditures

Significant capital improvement expenditures for fiscal year 2013 include the following:

Piedmont Regional WRRF — Total investment of $46.5 million for the engineering design
and construction of the Piedmont Regional WRRF. This facility combines four aging
facilities on the Saluda River (two of the Agency’s facilities, as well as the municipal plants
of Pelzer and West Pelzer). The facility was completed and placed in service in fiscal year
2013.

Grove Creek and Piedmont Pump Station Modifications — Expenditure of $5.9
million for the construction of a new 2.75 MGD pump station for conveyance of raw
sewage to the new Piedmont Regional WRRF, as well as conversion of the Grove Creek
WRRF effluent pump station to an influent pump station capable of providing influent
flow to the Piedmont Regional WRRF. Modifications include a new influent screenings
facility, Parshall flume and manhole, mag meter vault, lagoon pump suction intake, flow
diversion structure, associated manholes, miscellaneous piping, and all associated
electrical and instrumentation.

(Continued)

25



Capital Assets, continued
Capital improvement expenditures, continued

Table A-4 illustrates the Agency’s 2014 Capital Expenditures Budget of $42.8 million for planned
spending on projects that primarily consist of design of a new laboratory building, facility
enhancements and collection system improvements. The Agency believes that the budget
requirement for the upcoming fiscal year can be funded through a combination of reserves and South
Carolina revolving loan funds.

Table A-4
Fiscal Year 2014 Capital Expenditures Budget (in millions)

FUNDING SOURCES

South Carolina revolving loan fund $12.0
Reserves 30.8
Total funding sources $42.8

EXPENDITURES

Water resource recovery facilities $11.3
Collection system 16.2
Sustainability and reuse 6.8
Other projects 8.5

Total expenditures $42.8

Long-Term Debt
Revenue bonds

Long-term debt for the Agency consists of outstanding balances on revenue bonds and state
revolving loans with the South Carolina Water Quality Revolving Fund Authority. As of June 30,
2013, revenue bond debt of the Agency totaled $233.7 million and consisted of six series of revenue
and refunding revenue bonds: Series 2005, Series 2005B, Series 2009, Series 2010A, Series 2010B
and Series 2012. Revenue bond debt totaled $249.4 million and $273.4 million at the end of fiscal
years 2012 and 2011, respectively. In fiscal year 2012, the Agency issued $71.4 million to advance
refund $79.8 million of the Series 2005 bonds. In fiscal year 2011, the Agency issued $90.4 million
in bonds consisting of both revenue and refunding revenue bonds, the 2010A Series refunding
revenue bonds of $63.6 million and the 2010B Series Taxable Revenue Bonds (Recovery Zone
Economic Development Bonds) of $26.8 million.

(Continued)
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Long-Term Debt, continued
Revenue bonds, continued

The Agency received bond premiums of $4.7 million, $7.6 million, $6.1 million and $11.4 million
on the Series 2005, 2005B, 2010A and 2012 revenue bonds, respectively. The bond premiums and
related bond issuance costs, consisting of insurance costs and underwriting fees, are amortized over
the life of the bonds. The Series 2005, Series 2005B and Series 2009 are payable from gross
revenues and are on parity with all of the Agency’s state revolving loans. These obligations are
collectively referred to as the Senior Lien Debt. The Series 2010A, Series 2010B and Series 2012
were issued under the 2010 Bond Resolution and are subordinate in all aspects to the Senior Lien
Debt.

The Series 2005 and Series 2005B revenue bonds carry ‘Aa2’ and ‘AA’ ratings from Moody’s
Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s, respectively. Both the Series 2005 and 2005B ratings were
enhanced through the purchase of a surety agreement at issuance and carry the rating of the surety
provider or the underlying rating of the Agency, whichever is higher. In fiscal year 2009, Moody’s
Investors Service downgraded the Agency’s surety provider, triggering the funding of the Agency’s
debt service reserve requirement. In fiscal year 2011, Standard & Poor’s downgraded the Agency’s
surety provider.

The Series 2009, Series 2010A and Series 2010B revenue bonds were issued based on the Agency’s
underlying rating. In fiscal year 2012, Standard & Poor’s affirmed its ‘AA’ rating on the Agency’s
Senior Lien Debt, Series 2010A bonds, Series 2010B bonds and assigned its ‘AA’ rating to the
Series 2012 bonds. Also in fiscal year 2012, Moody’s Investors Service affirmed its ‘Aa2’ rating on
the Agency’s Senior Lien Debt, affirmed its ‘Aa3’ rating on the Series 2010A and 2010B bonds and
assigned its ‘Aa3’ rating to the Series 2012 bonds.

State revolving loans

Since December 1989, the Agency has entered into numerous loan agreements with the South
Carolina Water Quality Revolving Fund Authority for new construction and/or upgrades of the
system. Interest rates on these loans range from 1.8 to 2.25 percent. State revolving loans
outstanding as of June 30, 2013 totaled $42.8 million.

Listed below are the Agency’s state revolving loans outstanding at year end:

e June 2005 Lower Reedy WRRF expansion Phase Il

e November 2006 Durbin Creek WRRF expansion

e December 2009 Gravity Sewer and Manhole Rehabilitation Phase |
e December 2009 Gravity Sewer and Manhole Rehabilitation Phase 11

Construction has been completed and all funds received for the projects listed above.

(Continued)
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Long-Term Debt, continued
Total outstanding long-term debt

At June 30, 2013, the Agency owed $268.7 million (excluding premiums and deferred gain/loss on
refunding) in total long-term debt, a decrease of $16.9 million or 5.9% from $285.6 million at the
end of fiscal year 2012. In fiscal year 2012, the Agency issued $71.4 million in revenue bond debt
and $0.9 million in state revolving loans. The Agency advance refunded $79.8 million of the Series
2005 bonds and made a total of $16.1 million in payments on both outstanding revenue bonds and
state revolving loans. In fiscal year 2011, the Agency incurred $90.4 million in revenue bond debt
and $2.3 million in state revolving loans. The Agency refunded $77.2 million in state revolving
loans and made $16.6 million in aggregate payments on both outstanding revenue bonds and state
revolving loans. The total obligation for compensated absences at June 30, 2013 was $0.8 million.
More detailed information about the Agency’s long-term liabilities is presented in Notes 7, 8 and 9
of the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

The Agency’s bond covenants require net earnings (as defined in respective loan agreements) to be
at least 110 percent of the combined annual principal and interest requirement (as defined in the
respective loan agreements) in the fiscal year. The Agency has not defaulted in the payment of
principal or interest or in any other material way with respect to any of its securities at any time, nor
has the Agency used the proceeds of any bonds for current operating expenses at any time, nor does
the Agency intend to use the proceeds of any bonds for any such purposes. Based on the Agency’s
accompanying financial statements, the debt coverage ratio is calculated in Table A-5.

Table A-5
Debt Coverage (in millions)
For the Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012 2011
Operating revenue $74.6 $744 $69.7
Investment revenue, unrestricted 0.2 0.4 0.4
Gross revenues 74.8 74.8 70.1
Less: operating expenses before depreciation 29.1 27.3 25.7
Net revenues available for debt service $45.7 $47.5 $44.4
Debt service on bonds $27.8 $29.2 $28.9
Debt coverage 164% 163% 154%

Fiscal year 2013 debt service payments decreased $1.4 million or 4.8% to $27.8 million. Debt
service payments increased $0.3 million or 1.0% in fiscal year 2012. Debt structure on revenue
bonds varies year to year causing principal payments to increase and decrease over the life of the
bonds.

(Continued)
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Long-Term Debt, continued

Table A-6 shows the average coupon/rate by issue.

Table A-6
Average Coupon/Interest Rate
Balance
(without
premiums) Average
(in millions) coupon / rate
Series 2005 revenue bonds $ 1.0 4.3%
Series 2005B refunding revenue bonds 59.0 4.0
Series 2009 revenue bonds 21.9 3.8
Series 2010A refunding revenue bonds 51.3 3.4
Series 2010B revenue bonds 21.3 2.7
Series 2012 refunding revenue bonds 71.4 2.9
State revolving loans 42.8 2.1

General obligation bonds limitation on debt

Under the debt limitation provisions of Article X of the South Carolina Constitution, every county,
incorporated municipality, special purpose district and school district has the power, in such manner
and upon such terms and conditions as the General Assembly shall prescribe by general law, (a) to
incur general obligation debt authorized by a majority vote of the qualified electors thereof voting in
a referendum, without limitation as to amount and (b) to incur, without an election, debt, in addition
to bonded indebtedness existing on November 30, 1977, and bonded indebtedness authorized by
majority vote of qualified electors, in an amount not exceeding 8.0% of the assessed value of all
taxable property therein. As of June 30, 2013, the Agency’s assessed value was approximately $1.6
billion. The Agency had no general obligation debt outstanding as of June 30, 2013.

Economic Factors

The Agency is moderately impacted by economic trends. The Agency’s operating revenues are derived
solely from user fees. The Agency does not receive any tax appropriation. The Agency experienced
Domestic and commercial customer growth, as well as an increase in New account fees; hopefully an
indication that the economy is recovering. The New account fee revenue is designated exclusively for
increasing system capacity.

Interest rates remain low, decreasing interest earnings and the cost of borrowing.

Current economic conditions, such as the above, are considered by the Agency’s Commissioners and
Management when developing plans and budgets for the upcoming year.

Contacting the Agency’s Financial Department

This financial report is designed to provide our users and creditors with a general overview of the
Agency’s finances and to demonstrate the Agency’s accountability for funds received. If you have any
questions about this report or need additional financial information, please contact the Controller of
Renewable Water Resources at 561 Mauldin Road, Greenville, South Carolina 29607.
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Renewable Water Resources
Statements of Net Position
June 30,

2013 2012
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 29,925,252 $ 52,251,506
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19,728,940 26,490,104
Receivables, net 9,949,800 9,626,231
Investments - 757,107
Restricted investments 8,268,669 7,727,459
Total current assets 67,872,661 96,852,407
Non-current assets
Receivables, net 3,020,834 3,250,233
Investments 15,033,007 5,323,164
Capital assets, net 487,489,863 484,843,069
Bond issuance costs, net 5,343,838 5,901,574
Total non-current assets 510,887,542 499,318,040

Total assets

Current liabilities

$ 578,760,203

$ 596,170,447

Revenue bonds payable $ 16,607,208 $ 15,692,944
State revolving loans payable 2,402,392 2,350,601
Accounts payable - operations 776,125 749,445
Accounts payable - construction projects 3,648,566 13,534,862
Accrued interest payable 4,443,962 3,969,745
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,075,713 699,179
Compensated absences 625,550 673,000
Total current liabilities 29,579,516 37,669,776
Long-term liabilities
Revenue bonds payable 217,108,746 233,715,954
State revolving loans payable 40,353,970 42,756,362
Compensated absences 126,055 21,250
Other postemployment benefits 2,532,266 1,953,924
Total long-term liabilities 260,121,037 278,447,490
Total liabilities 289,700,553 316,117,266
Net position

Net investment in capital assets 207,368,981 183,853,336

Net position - restricted
Debt service 19,560,054 18,744,295
Depreciation 4,874,899 4,848,431
Other 3,562,656 3,563,847
Net position - unrestricted 53,693,060 69,043,272

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 289,059,650

$ 280,053,181




Renewable Water Resources
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
Operating revenues
Domestic and commercial customers $ 61,858,932 $ 62,503,653
Industrial customers 6,734,685 6,771,088
New account fees 5,492,500 4,684,500
Septic haulers and other 546,015 454,470
Total operating revenues 74,632,132 74,413,711
Operating expenses
Operations 13,741,097 12,772,433
Technical services 2,951,718 2,922,505
Collection system 2,938,441 2,643,092
IS and instrumentation 1,597,780 1,530,452
Human resources 2,144,962 2,000,955
Administrative finance 5,711,236 5,408,849
Total operating expenses before depreciation 29,085,234 27,278,286
Depreciation 26,061,618 24,134,563
Total operating expenses 55,146,852 51,412,849
Net operating revenue 19,485,280 23,000,862
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Investment revenue 218,939 453,338
Interest expense (10,094,401) (10,723,179)
Amortization (557,736) (509,502)
Non-project expenses (154,442) (375,100)
Other revenue 108,829 87,436
Net non-operating expenses (10,478,811) (11,067,007)
Capital project cost reimbursements - 610,293
Increase in net position 9,006,469 12,544,148
Total net position, beginning of year 280,053,181 267,509,033
Total net position, end of year $ 289,059,650 $ 280,053,181

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Renewable Water Resources
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities
Received from customers $ 74,309,111 $ 79,031,850
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (26,898,624) (3,451,264)

Paid to employees for services

(11,033,995)

(10,638,010)

Net cash provided by operating activities 36,376,492 64,942 576
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Cash received for capital project cost reimbursement - 610,293
Cash received on notes receivable for capital 220,616 212,169
Acquisition of capital assets and project expenses (28,710,805) (42,988,501)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt - 83,652,700
Principal payments on debt (16,890,601) (106,847,412)
Bond issuance costs - (602,960)
Interest payments on debt (10,925,177) (13,139,453)
Proceeds from non-operating revenue 108,829 87,436
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (56,197,138) (79,015,728)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received on investments 227,174 452,125
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 21,590,256 40,821,974
Purchases of investment securities (31,084,202) (29,468,780)
Net cash used for investing activities (9,266,772) 11,805,319
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (29,087,418) (2,267,833)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 78,741,610 81,009,443
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 49,654,192 $ 78,741,610

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

33




Renewable Water Resources
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30,

Reconciliation of net operating revenue to net
cash flows from operating activities
Net operating revenue

Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenue to net

cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation

Changes in asset and liability amounts
Receivables
Accounts payable - operations
Accounts payable - construction projects
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefits

Net cash provided by operating activities
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to statement of net position

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents

Supplemental disclosures
Capitalized interest costs

Non-cash investing activities
Decrease in fair value of investments

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2013 2012
19,485,280 23,000,862
26,061,618 24,134,563

(323,021) 4,618,139
26,680 182,171
(9,886,296) 12,349,906
376,534 67,118
57,355 (4,503)
578,342 594,320
36,376,492 64,942,576
29,925,252 52,251,506
19,728,940 26,490,104
49,654,192 78,741,610
152,049 449,821
(48,512) (15,928)
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Renewable Water Resources
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities

Description of entity

Renewable Water Resources (the “Agency”), previously known as Western Carolina Regional Sewer
Authority, is a special purpose district created by the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina.
The Agency is governed by a Commission consisting of nine members who are appointed by the
Governor upon recommendation by the legislative delegations of Greenville, Anderson, and Laurens
Counties. The Agency's mission is to provide wastewater treatment services for residents and
industries covering substantially all of Greenville County and portions of Anderson, Laurens, Pickens
and Spartanburg Counties. In fulfilling its functions, the Agency receives wastewater from the area’s
collection systems and owns and operates treatment facilities, sewage pumping stations and trunk
sewer lines (the “System”). It is the Agency's policy to maintain customer user rates sufficient to meet
operational and maintenance expenses and to pay debt service on bonds and notes issued to finance
upgrading and maintaining the System.

Reporting entity

This report includes all operations of the Agency for which the Agency's Commissioners are
financially accountable.

Fund accounting

The Agency maintains a single enterprise type fund to record its activities which consists of a self-
balancing set of accounts. Enterprise type funds are used to account for activities similar to those
found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful for sound
financial administration.

Basis of accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as recommended by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“AICPA”). Basis of accounting refers to the timing of recognition of revenues and expenses. Under
the accrual basis of accounting, revenues and receivables are recognized when earned and expenses
and liabilities are recognized when incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

(Continued)
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Renewable Water Resources
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities, continued
Budgetary practices

Annual budgets are prepared by management as a control device. The budget required by the State of
South Carolina is prepared on the cash basis of accounting. Management also prepares a budget on the
accrual basis of accounting which is used for internal purposes.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Agency considers all liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Gains or losses that result from market fluctuation are reported
in the current period.

Restricted assets

Any unexpended bond proceeds issued by the Agency are classified as restricted assets because their
use is restricted to the purpose for which the bonds were originally issued. Cash and cash equivalents
and investments included in the Agency’s debt service and debt service reserve accounts are classified
as restricted because their use is restricted for security and debt service of the outstanding debt. When
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.

Capital assets

Capital assets are stated at historical cost. The Agency capitalizes purchases of assets greater than
$5,000. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.
Depreciation of capital assets is calculated by use of the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the respective assets as follows:

Facilities, trunk lines, and equipment 15 - 40 years
Office furniture and equipment 5— 8 years
Vehicles 3 years

Intangible assets consisting of rights-of-way are recorded as capital assets at cost and considered to
have an indefinite useful life, therefore not amortized. If changes in factors and conditions result in the
useful life of an intangible asset no longer being indefinite, the asset is evaluated for impairment
because a change in the expected duration of use of the asset has occurred. The carrying value of the
intangible asset, if any, following the recognition of any impairment loss is amortized over the
remaining estimated useful life of the asset.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities, continued

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized value of
the assets constructed.

The cost of fully depreciated assets and the related accumulated depreciation amounts are eliminated
from the accounts whether the assets are retired or continue in service.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the life of the asset are not capitalized.

Net position

Net position is classified into three components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and
unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:

e Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets,
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent
related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds
are not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Instead that portion of
the debt is included in the same net position component as the unspent proceeds.

e Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on an assets’ use
through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted - This component consists of net position that does not meet the definition of
"restricted"” or "net investment in capital assets."

Long-term obligations

Long-term debt and other obligations financed by the Agency are reported as liabilities on the
Statements of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as deferred refunding costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using methods which approximate the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount and, if
applicable, deferred refunding costs. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges (other assets) and
amortized over the life of the bonds on the straight-line method.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities, continued
Compensated absences
Vested vacation leave is recorded as an expense and liability as the benefits accrue to employees.

Revenues and receivables

e Domestic and commercial customers - Revenues and receivables, based on water
consumption, are recognized when services are provided.

e Industrial customers - Revenues and receivables, based on metered effluent and surcharges,
are recognized when services are provided.

e Allowance for uncollectible accounts - An allowance for uncollectible accounts is estimated
based on historic bad debt levels, plus an amount for any specific doubtful accounts.

Operating revenues and expenses

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the
Agency’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Agency are charges to
customers for wastewater treatment services. Operating expenses include the cost of services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Estimates

Preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
Agency’s financial position and results of operations and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

New pronouncements

The Agency has implemented the following GASB pronouncements:

“ (Continued)
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities, continued

GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained
in Pre-November 30, 1989 Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and AICPA
Pronouncements, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011, codifies all sources of
generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments so they are derived from a
single source. The standard also supersedes GASB Statement No. 20, eliminating the election to apply
FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, as well as the need for
disclosure of this election. All FASB and AICPA pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989
will become nonauthoritative literature for application purposes. In addition, the standard clarifies that
interest should be capitalized on assets acquired for others, clarifies that interest need not be imputed
on low interest loans and clarifies the operating cycle should not be used to classify current assets and
liabilities. This statement does not have a material impact on the Agency’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Net Position, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011, provides
financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
requiring segregation of deferred outflows and inflows from assets and liabilities for both
governmental financial statements and accrual basis financial statements. The standard amends the net
asset reporting requirements in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and
Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, and other pronouncements
by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions
of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position,
rather than net assets. This statement does not have a material impact on the Agency’s financial
statements.

The GASB has issued several statements which have not yet been implemented by the Agency. Those
statements which may have a future impact on the Agency include:

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2012, identifies deferred outflows and inflows that are to be separated
from assets and liabilities under GASB Statement No. 63 and provides for immediate recognition of
certain costs and fees. This standard also provides financial reporting guidance related to the impact of
the financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such
as changes in the determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term deferred
in financial statement presentations. Implementation of this standard will result in reclassifications of
the Agency’s deferred loss on refunding from revenue bonds payable to deferred outflow and
elimination of the Agency’s bond issuance cost assets, with a net carrying value of $5,343,838 at
June 30, 2013.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities, continued

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2014, replaces the requirements of
GASB Statements No. 27 and No. 50 as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension
plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The standard
requires government employers to recognize as a liability, for the first time, their long-term obligation
for pension benefits. The employer liability is to be measured as the difference between the present
value of projected benefit payments to be provided through the pension plan for past periods of service
less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position, with obligations for employers with cost
sharing plans based on their proportionate share of contributions to the pension plan. The standard
also requires more immediate recognition of annual service cost, interest and changes in benefits for
pension expense, specifies requirements for discount rates and actuarial methods and changes
disclosure requirements.

Note 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency had the following cash and cash equivalents and
investments:

Fair Value
June 30,
Description 2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents
Checking and other cash $ 38,358,560 $ 67,724,774
Money markets — government obligations 11,295,632 11,016,836
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 49,654,192 $ 78,741,610
Investments
Certificates of deposit $ 9,000,000 $ -
Government sponsored enterprises 6,033,007 6,080,271
United States Treasury Bills 8,268,669 7,727,459
Total investments $ 23,301,676 $ 13,807,730
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Note 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued

Investment maturities are as follows as of June 30, 2013:

Investment maturities

(in years)
Less than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 year 1-5years

Certificates of Deposit $ 9,000,000 $ - $ 9,000,000
US Treasury Bills 8,268,669 8,268,669 -
US Agencies notes and bonds

Federal Farm Credit Bank bonds 3,912,425 - 3,912,425

Federal Home Loan Bank bonds 878,621 - 878,621

Federal National Mortgage Association notes 1,241,961 - 1,241,961
Total $ 23,301,676 $ 8,268,669 $ 15,033,007

Interest rate risk

The Agency’s investment policy requires structuring investment maturities and investment options to
manage its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit risk

State law limits investments to obligations of the United States and agencies thereof, general
obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units, financial institutions to the extent
that the same are secured by Federal Deposit Insurance, and certificates of deposits where the
certificates are collaterally secured by securities of the type described above are held by a third party
as escrow agent or custodian, of a market value not less than the amount of the certificates of deposit
so secured, including interest. The Agency has an investment policy that would further limit its
investment choices. The Agency’s investments at June 30, 2013 and 2012 consist of US Treasury
Bills and US Agencies notes and bonds. The bills and US Agencies notes and bonds were rated AA+
by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service as of June 30, 2013.

Concentration of credit risk

The Agency has an investment policy that limits the types of investments the Agency may invest in
any one issuer. More than 5 percent of the Agency’s investments are in US Treasury Bills. These
investments are approximately 35 percent of the Agency’s total investments at June 30, 2013.
Custodial credit risk deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Agency’s deposits may not be
returned to it. The Agency has a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012 all of

the Agency’s deposits were insured or collateralized with securities held by the Agency’s agents in the
Agency’s name.

42



Renewable Water Resources
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 3 — Receivables

Customer and other accounts receivables were as follows:

June 30,
2013 2012

Fees and services

Domestic and commercial customers $9,162,313 $ 8,800,833

Industrial customers 1,246,274 1,227,698

Total receivables from fees 10,408,587 10,028,531

Less: allowance for uncollectible accounts 725,000 725,000
Net receivables from fees 9,683,587 9,303,531
Accrued interest on cash equivalents & other receivables 36,815 77,085
Reimbursements due from other governmental units 3,250,232 3,495,848
Total receivables 12,970,634 12,876,464

Less: current receivables, net 9,949,800 9,626,231
Non-current receivables, net $ 3,020,834 $ 3,250,233

Note 4 — Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Provisions of the revenue bond and state revolving loan agreements require the Agency to establish
funds and restrict the use of certain cash and cash equivalents and investments. A brief description of
such funds follows:

e Capital projects - restricts the use of revenue bond, state revolving loan, real property sales
proceeds, and interest earnings on such proceeds, to the construction of capital projects.

e Current principal and interest payments - reports resources accumulated for the next
principal and interest payments.

e Debt service reserves - reports resources set aside to cover potential future deficiencies in the
current principal and interest payments account.

e Operations and maintenance - reports resources set aside to cover operating and maintenance
expenses for one month.

e Depreciation - reports resources set aside to fund asset replacements.

e Contingencies - reports resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies.
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Note 4 — Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued

Restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2013 and 2012 are restricted for the

following uses:

Capital projects

Current principal and interest payments
Debt service reserves

Operations and maintenance
Depreciation

Contingencies

Total restricted assets

Restricted assets consisted of the following at June 30:

Cash
Investments
Total restricted assets

2013 2012
$ - $ 7,060,990
11,283,895 10,471,104
8,276,159 8,273,191
2,562,656 2,563,847
4,874,899 4,848,431
1,000,000 1,000,000
$ 27,997,609 $ 34,217,563
2013 2012
$ 19,728,940 $ 26,490,104
8,268,669 7,727,459
$ 27,997,609 $ 34,217,563
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Note 5 — Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets follows below.

Capital assets not being depreciated
Construction in progress
Land
Rights-of-way
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Trunk lines
Water resource recovery facilities equipment
Operational equipment
Office furniture
Vehicles
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less: accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Trunk lines
Water resource recovery facilities equipment
Operational equipment
Office furniture
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Capital assets, net

Balance Balance
June 30, 2012 Additions Disposals June 30, 2013
$ 40,981,998 $ 8,991,619 $ 39,859,743 $ 10,113,874

3,544,803 5,691 - 3,550,494
41,417 18,850 - 60,267

44,568,218 9,016,160 39,859,743 13,724,635

318,005,443 24,667,983 1,453,910 341,219,516

305,208,393 21,927,096 850,262 326,285,227

82,853,162 8,222,661 1,058,517 90,017,306
1,266,849 4,537,033 72,147 5,731,735
482,394 - 95,636 386,758
751,511 197,504 169,227 779,788

708,567,752 59,552,277 3,699,699 764,420,330

120,877,639 11,373,984 1,453,910 130,797,713

100,562,358 8,157,131 850,262 107,869,227

45,669,273 6,001,154 1,058,517 50,611,910

504,662 260,828 72,147 693,343
275,708 72,227 95,354 252,581
403,261 196,294 169,227 430,328

268,292,901 26,061,618 3,699,417 290,655,102

440,274,851 33,490,659 282 473,765,228
$ 484,843,069 $ 42,506,819 $ 39,860,025 $ 487,489,863
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Note 5 — Capital Assets, continued

Capital assets not being depreciated
Construction in progress
Land
Rights-of-way
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Trunk lines
Water resource recovery facilities equipment
Operational equipment
Office furniture
Vehicles
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less: accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Trunk lines
Water resource recovery facilities equipment
Operational equipment
Office furniture
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Capital assets, net

The Agency has granted a statutory lien on the System to secure its revenue bonds and state revolving

loans.

Interest cost in 2013 and 2012 totaled $11,380,851 and 12,416,372, respectively, of which $152,049

and $449,821 was capitalized.

Note 6 — Bond Issuance Costs

Balance Balance
June 30, 2011 Additions Disposals June 30, 2012
$ 4,108,739 $ 38,317,353 $ 1,444,004 $ 40,981,998

3,502,452 42,351 3,544,803
11,169 30,248 41,417
7,622,360 38,389,952 1,444,094 44,568,218

317,070,082 2,523,452 1,588,091 318,005,443

303,388,103 2,243,070 422,780 305,208,393

83,004,340 841,152 992,330 82,853,162

1,191,062 144,419 68,632 1,266,849
458,887 72,546 49,039 482,394
629,657 292,725 170,871 751,511

705,742,131 6,117,364 3,291,743 708,567,752

111,865,544 10,600,186 1,588,091 120,877,639

93,354,928 7,630,210 422,780 100,562,358

41,138,062 5,523,541 992,330 45,669,273

446,526 126,768 68,632 504,662
248,061 76,686 49,039 275,708
396,960 177,172 170,871 403,261

247,450,081 24,134,563 3,291,743 268,292,901

458,292,050 (18,017,199) 440,274,851
$ 465,914,410 $ 20,372,753 $ 1,444,094 $ 484,843,069

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency's bond issuance costs were as follows:

June 30,
2013 2012
Bond issuance costs $ 9,025,381 $ 9,025,381
Less: accumulated amortization 3,681,543 3,123,807
Bond issuance costs, net $ 5,343,838 $5,901,574

Amortization of bond issuance costs for the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 totaled $557,736 and
$509,502, respectively.
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Note 6 — Bond Issuance Costs, continued

Estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years is as follows:

Year ending Amortization

June 30, expense
2014 $ 557,736
2015 557,736
2016 553,049
2017 553,049
2018 553,049
Thereafter 2,569,219
$ 5,343,838

Note 7 — Revenue Bonds Payable

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency was obligated on various series of revenue bonds issued for

purposes of constructing water resource recovery facilities and trunk lines.

outstanding at June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

$86,560,000 Series 2005 revenue bonds dated January 11, 2005 with
annual principal payments ranging from $65,000 to $2,250,000 plus
interest at 2.40 to 4.88 percent payable semi-annually through March
2015.

$69,695,000 Series 2005B refunding revenue bonds dated March 15,
2005 with interest at 2.55 to 5.07 percent payable semi-annually
beginning September 1, 2005. Beginning March 1, 2012, annual
principal payments ranging from $5,180,000 to $9,400,000 plus
semi-annual payments of interest at 2.55 to 5.07 percent are payable
through March 2021.

$30,000,000 Series 2009 revenue bonds dated April 29, 2009 with
annual principal payments ranging from $1,520,000 to $5,000,000
plus interest at 3.79 percent payable semi-annually through March
2024.

$63,630,000 Series 2010A refunding revenue bonds dated July 9,
2010 with interest at 3.00 to 5.00 percent payable semi-annually
beginning January 1, 2011. Beginning January 1, 2011, annual
principal payments ranging from $1,665,000 to $5,585,000 plus
semi-annual payments of interest at 3.00 to 5.00 percent are payable
through January 2025.

$26,800,000 Series 2010B revenue bonds dated December 7, 2010
with interest at 1.99 to 5.81 percent payable semi-annually beginning
July 1, 2011. Beginning January 1, 2012, annual principal payments
ranging from $225,000 to $3,080,000 plus semi-annual payments of
interest at 1.99 to 5.81 percent are payable through January 2025.
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Revenue bonds

2013 2012
$ 1,025,000 $ 1,510,000
59,070,000 64,515,000
21,900,000 23,480,000
51,285,000 55,585,000
21,270,000 24,000,000
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Note 7 — Revenue Bonds Payable, continued

2013 2012

$71,395,000 Series 2012 refunding revenue bonds dated March 20,
2012 with interest at 2.00 to 5.00 percent payable semi-annually
beginning July 1, 2012. Beginning January 1, 2014, annual
principal payments ranging from $270,000 to $17,325,000 plus
semi-annual payments of interest at 2.00 to 5.00 percent are payable
through January 2025. 71,395,000 71,395,000

225,945,000 240,485,000
Premium on Series 2005 revenue bonds 34,067 51,101
Premium on Series 2005B refunding bonds 3,618,389 4,090,353
Premium on Series 2010A refunding bonds 3,652,905 4,552,381
Premium on Series 2012 refunding bonds 10,681,950 11,376,688
Less: deferred loss on refunding 10,216,357 11,146,625
Less: current maturities 16,607,208 15,692,944
Long-term portion $ 217,108,746 $ 233,715,954

Amortization of bond premiums totaled approximately $2,083,212 and $1,493,908 for the years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Amortization of the deferred loss on refunding was $930,268
and $234,463 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Future amounts required to pay principal and interest on revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2013
are as follows:

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 15,375,000 $ 10,076,124 $ 25,451,124
2015 16,015,000 9,417,219 25,432,219
2016 16,560,000 8,788,824 25,348,824
2017 17,290,000 8,070,271 25,360,271
2018 18,080,000 7,351,450 25,431,450
2019 - 2023 98,870,000 23,817,218 122,687,218
2024 - 2025 43,755,000 3,118,063 46,873,063

$ 225,945,000 $ 70,639,169 $ 296,584,169

Provisions of the revenue bond agreements require the Agency to maintain user rates sufficient to
generate net earnings as defined by the bond agreement of at least 110 percent of the combined annual
principal and interest payments, make timely payment of principal and interest on all outstanding debt,
maintain required funds for debt service reserves, operations and maintenance expenses, depreciation
and contingencies, and meet various other general requirements specified in the bond agreements.
Management believes that the Agency was in compliance with these covenants at June 30, 2013 and
2012,

The Series 2005, 2005B and 2009 bonds are payable solely from and secured by a pledge of the gross
revenues of the Agency.

(Continued)
48



Renewable Water Resources
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note 7 — Revenue Bonds Payable, continued

The Series 2010A, 2010B and 2012 bonds are secured by a pledge of the gross revenues, net of
operations and maintenance expenses (as defined), that is subordinate to the aforementioned Series

2005, 2005B and 2009 pledge.

Interest expense on the revenue bonds totaled $10,275,580 and $10,890,645 for the years ended June

30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Note 8 — State Revolving Loans Payable

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency was obligated on various state revolving loans issued for
purposes of constructing capital assets. State revolving loan amounts outstanding at June 30, 2013 and

2012 are as follows:

$19,571,443 Lower Reedy water resource recovery facility expansion
phase Il loan dated June 10, 2005. Payable in quarterly installments of
$312,731, including interest at 2.25 percent, through March 2027.

$27,800,000 Durbin Creek water resource recovery facility upgrade and
expansion loan dated November 14, 2006. Payable in quarterly
installments of $438,048, including interest at 2.25 percent, through
March 2029.

$2,850,550 Gravity sewer and manhole rehabilitation phase | loan dated
December 9, 2009. Payable in quarterly installments of $42,187 including
interest at 1.84 percent, through November 2030.

$2,509,938 Gravity sewer and manhole rehabilitation phase Il loan dated
December 9, 2009. Payable in quarterly installments of $38,755 including
interest at 2.17 percent, through January 2031.

Less: current maturities
Long-term portion
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2013 2012
$ 14,758,556 $ 15,664,634
23,182,748 24,396,215
2,540,283 2,665,648
2,274,775 2,380,466
42,756,362 45,106,963
2,402,392 2,350,601
$ 40,353,970 $ 42,756,362
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Note 8 — State Revolving Loans Payable, continued

Interest expense on the state revolving loans totaled $971,765 and $1,091,949 for the years ended June
30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Future amounts required to pay outstanding principal and interest on state revolving loans outstanding
at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 2,402,392 $ 924,490 $ 3,326,882
2015 2,455,405 871,476 3,326,881
2016 2,509,670 817,211 3,326,881
2017 2,565,217 761,664 3,326,881
2018 2,622,077 704,804 3,326,881
2019 - 2023 14,011,490 2,622,916 16,634,406
2024 - 2028 14,067,718 1,003,034 15,070,752
2029 - 2031 2,122,393 39,922 2,162,315

$ 42,756,362 $ 7,745,517 $ 50,501,879

Provisions of the state revolving loan agreements require the Agency to use loan proceeds solely for
the purpose of paying eligible project costs, submit the annual audit of its financial statements by
December 31st, maintain user rates sufficient to make timely payment of principal and interest on all
outstanding debt, maintain required funds for current principal and interest payments, operations and
maintenance expenses, depreciation and contingencies, review the adequacy of its user rates at least
annually, and meet various other general requirements specified in the loan agreements. Management
believes that the Agency was in compliance with these covenants at June 30, 2013 and 2012.

The state revolving loans are secured by a pledge of the gross revenues of the Agency. As additional
security, the Agency has granted a statutory lien on the System.
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Note 9 — Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Changes in long-term debt, compensated absences and other postemployment benefits (“OPEB”) for
the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions June 30, 2013 one year
Revenue bonds $ 240,485,000 $ - $ 14,540,000 $ 225,945,000 $ 15,375,000
State revolving loans 45,106,963 - 2,350,601 42,756,362 2,402,392
Compensated absences 694,250 683,355 626,000 751,605 625,550
OPEB 1,953,924 871,159 292,817 2,532,266 -
288,240,137 1,554,514 17,809,418 271,985,233 18,402,942
Less: deferred loss on
refunding 11,146,625 - 930,268 10,216,357 930,268
Premiums on bond issuance 20,070,523 - 2,083,212 17,987,311 2,162,476
$ 297,164,035 $ 1554514 $ 18,962,362 $ 279,756,187 $ 19,635,150
Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2011 Additions Reductions June 30, 2012 one year
Revenue bonds $ 262,710,000 $ 71,395,000 $ 93,620,000 $ 240,485,000 $ 14,540,000
State revolving loans 46,472,373 881,012 2,246,422 45,106,963 2,350,601
Compensated absences 698,753 668,261 672,764 694,250 673,000
OPEB 1,359,604 844,007 249,687 1,953,924 250,000
311,240,730 73,788,280 96,788,873 288,240,137 17,813,601
Less: deferred loss on
refunding 2,683,537 8,697,551 234,463 11,146,625 930,268
Premiums on bond issuance 13,338,573 11,376,688 4,644,738 20,070,523 2,083,212
$ 321,895,766 $ 76,467,417 $101,199,148 $ 297,164,035 $ 18,966,545

A portion of the Series 2005 bonds were defeased through the issuance of the Series 2012 bonds and
by depositing the proceeds in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments. Thus,
the defeased debt and the irrevocable trust are not a part of the financial statements. Outstanding
principal amounts of defeased bonds totaled $79,770,000 at June 30, 2013.

Note 10 — Construction Contracts in Progress
At June 30, 2013 the Agency had commitments for various projects for the construction and

acquisition of property and equipment. Construction in progress is included in the property and
equipment balance as facilities, land, trunk lines and equipment.

(Continued)
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Note 10 — Construction Contracts in Progress, continued

The following summarizes construction contracts in progress at June 30, 2013 on which significant

additional work is to be performed:
Total contract

Contract incurred through Balance to be
Project Name amount June 30, 2013 performed

Bar Screen and Screw Compactor Replacement $ 459,868 $ 25,793 $ 434,075
FY13 Gravity Sewer Rehab 3,494,807 1,017,595 2,477,212
Fountain Inn "A" PS Upgrades 864,043 658,718 205,325
Gilder Creek PCS Upgrades 1,445,483 277,656 1,167,827
Guy's Restaurant PS Upgrades 292,674 157,111 135,563
Pelham Day Tank Repairs 141,395 - 141,395
Pelham IPS Equipment Replacement 1,548,541 625,992 922,549
Pelham Solids Handling Improvements 625,392 83,834 541,558
Piedmont and Grove Modifications 7,677,155 6,195,937 1,481,218
Piedmont Regional WRRF Warranty 3,181,695 - 3,181,695
Taylors PS Bar Screen 1,009,290 704,222 305,068
$ 20,740,343 $ 9,746,858 $ 10,993,485

Note 11 — Compensated Absences

Full-time employees of the Agency accumulate vacation benefits at 1 to 2 days per month, based on
length of service, up to 24 days per year. Annual leave in excess of 24 days at December 31st of each
year is forfeited. Annual leave earned up to 24 days is paid to employees upon separation from
employment. Accrued vacation benefits totaled $751,605 and $694,250 at June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Note 12 — Employee Benefits
Pension plan

Substantially all of the Agency’s employees are members of the South Carolina Retirement System
(the “SCRS”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plan administered by the Retirement Division
of the State Budget and Control Board. The SCRS provides retirement and disability benefits, cost of
living adjustments on an adhoc basis, life insurance benefits and survivor benefits. The Plan’s
provisions are established under Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. The SCRS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required information for the
SCRS. That report may be obtained by writing the South Carolina Retirement System, Post Office Box
11960, Columbia, South Carolina 29211-1960 or by calling 1-800-868-9002.

(Continued)
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Note 12 — Employee Benefits, continued

Plan members are required to contribute 7.0 and 6.5 percent of their annual covered salary for the years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and the Agency is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. The Agency’s rate is 10.45 and 9.385 percent of annual covered payroll for the years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and an additional 0.15 percent of payroll is contributed to
a group life insurance benefit for the participants for each of the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Required contributions were made at 100 percent and are summarized as follows:

Employer Employee
SCRS SCRS
June 30, 2013 $1,129,479 $ 745,882
June 30, 2012 972,459 662,924
June 30, 2011 949,406 657,078

Deferred compensation plan

The Agency offers its employees a deferred compensation plan, created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457, which is administered and controlled by the state of South Carolina. The
plan, available to all the Agency employees, permits employees to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. Participation in the plan is optional. Certain employees of the Agency have elected to
participate. Compensation deferred under the Section 457 plan is placed in trust for the contributing
employee.

The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of
the Agency in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant.
Great-West Retirement Services (under state contract) is the program administrator of the Section 457
Plan.

Note 13 — Postemployment Healthcare Plan

The Agency maintains a single-employer defined benefit plan (the “Plan”) to provide certain
postretirement healthcare benefits to all former regular full time employees. Healthcare coverage levels
for retirees are the same as coverage provided to regular active full time employees in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the SC State Health Plan. The Agency contributes up to 58 percent of the
monthly premium for retirees and covered dependents based on the selected healthcare plan. The
amount contributed by the Agency is determined by the State of SC Employee Insurance Program.
This amount is based on the level of coverage selected by the retiree not the plan selected. The
Agency is under no statutory or contractual obligation to provide these postretirement healthcare
benefits. Because the Plan consists solely of the Agency’s commitment to provide OPEB through the
payment of premiums to insurance companies on behalf of its eligible retirees, no stand-alone financial
report is either available or generated.

(Continued)
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Note 13 — Postemployment Healthcare Plan, continued

The Agency contributes the following per retiree per month based on the level of coverage selected
and not the plan selected by the retiree:

July 2012 to January 2013 to

December 2012 June 2013
Retiree only $ 292 $ 328
Retiree/spouse 578 650
Retiree/child(ren) 448 504
Family 724 814

For the year ended June 30, 2013, Plan members receiving benefits paid $134,398 which was used to
offset the Agency’s cash outlays to insurance carriers equaling $412,201 for the current year premiums
due. The net outlay from the Agency, which totaled $277,803, represents the Agency’s net cost paid
for current year premiums due. The Plan is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The Agency’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contributions (“ARC”) of
the Agency, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement
No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period
not to exceed thirty years.

The following table shows the components of the Agency’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Agency’s net OPEB obligation to the Plan:

Annual required contribution $ 864,695
Interest on net OPEB obligation 87,927
Adjustment to annual required contribution (81,463)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 871,159
Contributions made (292,817) *
Increase in net OPEB obligation 578,342
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 1,953,924
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 2,532,266

The Agency’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 and the preceding two fiscal years were as

follows:
Fiscal Annual Annual Employer Net
year required OPEB amount Percentage OPEB
ended contribution cost contributed contributed obligation
June 30, 2013 $ 864,695 $ 871,159 $ 292,817 * 33.6% $ 2,532,266
June 30, 2012 839,510 844,007 249,687 * 29.6% 1,953,924
June 30, 2011 733,507 736,451 266,792 * 36.2% 1,359,604

*includes adjustment for implicit rate subsidy.

(Continued)
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Note 13 — Postemployment Healthcare Plan, continued

As of June 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was not funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $8,780,194 resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(“UAAL”) of $8,780,194. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the
plan) was $10,660,375, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 82.3 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits. However, because the Agency maintains no Plan assets, information relative to Plan asset
required disclosure is not applicable.

The Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the Agency’s
retiree health care plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a set of actuarial
assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected. The projected unit credit method then
provides for a systematic funding for these anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to
cover the cost of benefits being earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the
unfunded accrued liability.

Projections of health benefits are based on the plan as understood by the Agency and include the types
of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the Agency
and its employees to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ
methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Investment rate of return 4.50%, net of expenses

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit Cost Method

Amortization method Level as a percentage of employee payroll

Amortization period Open 30 year period

Payroll growth 3.00% per annum

Inflation 3.00% per annum

Medical trend Initial rate of 7.25% declining to an ultimate rate of
4.50% over 13 years

Drug trend Initial rate of 8.00% declining to an ultimate rate of
4.50% over 13 years

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status and the ARC of
the Agency’s retiree health care plan are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
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Note 14 — Commitments

The Agency has contracted with the Commissioners of the Public Works of the City of Greenville,
South Carolina to provide for collection of sewer service charges. The rate charged is subject to
adjustment annually based upon experience. The cost to the Agency for the year ending June 30, 2013
was $1,753,634, which is included in customer service expenses on the accompanying Statements of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. For the year ended June 30, 2014, billing charges to
the Agency are estimated to cost approximately $1.8 million.

Note 15 — Contingencies

Through routine sampling, the Agency identified polychlorinated biphenyls, also known as PCB’s, in
the solid waste byproducts in one of the water resource recovery facilities. These byproducts have
been isolated into on-site holding tanks for cleanup. The Agency will continue testing its effluent and
solid waste byproducts to ensure the illegal dumping does not present an environmental concern. Also,
the Agency will continue to work closely with South Carolina Department of Health and
Environmental Control and United States Environmental Protection Agency until this is resolved.

The Agency is from time-to-time subject to various claims, legal actions and other matters arising out
of the normal conduct of the Agency's operations. In particular, the Agency is regularly involved in
lawsuits related to acquiring rights-of-way for its use, which requires a determination of amounts of
just compensation to be paid to the owners. Based on prior experience and available information, the
Agency does not anticipate any lawsuits to be material to the basic financial statements.

Note 16 — Risk Management

The Agency is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Agency maintains
insurance coverage through the State of South Carolina, and has effectively managed risk through
various employee education and prevention programs. No significant reductions in insurance coverage
have occurred from the prior year to the current year. The amount of settlements has not exceeded
insurance coverage for the years ending June 30, 2013 and 2012. The Agency believes that the amount
of actual or potential claims as of June 30, 2013 will not materially affect the financial condition of the
Agency.
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Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benefits

Actuarial
accrued UAAL as a
liability Unfunded percentage
Actuarial Actuarial (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered of covered
Fiscal valuation value of entry (UAAL) ratio payroll payroll
Year date assets (a) ageb (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
2011 June 30,2008 $ - $ 8417369 $ 8,417,369 0.00% 10,318,963 81.6%
2012 June 30, 2010 - 8,780,194 8,780,194 0.00% 10,198,831 86.1%
2013 June 30, 2010 - 8,780,194 8,780,194 0.00% 10,660,375 82.3%
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Save an old plastic bag to use
as a can liner. Pour cooled FOG
into the can and allow it to
harden. When hardened, simply
toss the liner in the trash.

Pipe Patrol:

Pipe Patrol is an educational campaign designed by Renewable Water Resources to
inform our community about the hazards of pouring fats, oils and grease (“FOG”) down
the drain. Although most of us are aware of the potential health risks associated with
excessive fats and grease in our diet, we may not realize the danger of improperly
disposing of these items.
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Pipe Patrol:

The Pipe Patrol campaign educates the community about the effects of pouring FOG
down the kitchen sink and how it can be harmful to the local environment. Pouring
FOG down the drain can cause problems during the wastewater treatment process
and create pipe blockages in your home that can be inconvenient and expensive to fix.
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Statistical Section

This part of the Agency’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information say about the Agency’s overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends — These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
Agency’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity — This schedule contains information to help the reader assess the Agency’s most
significant local revenue sources.

Debt Capacity — These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
Agency’s current levels of outstanding debt and the ability to manage debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information — These schedules offer demographic and economic
indicators to help the reader understand the environment in which the Agency operates.

Operating Information — These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the financial report relates to the services the Authority provides.

59



*ABojopoyisw siy} Jo uoiealjdde ay3 1931431 03 paisnipe usaq aney pajuasaid sieak [easty Jayio |[e ‘sesodind aAlesedwod 104 6002
puE 0TOZ ‘0F 3UNC PApUB S1e3K 10} SJUBLWSIEIS [eIOUBUL U} O} S3J0U 3U} JO 8T SION Ul PagLIIS3P Sk ‘S3DIAISS P3]|Igun Urelad Jo Joeduwl SAITRINWIND duj 193]431 0} UoNIsod Jau 600 Jeak [easty pajelsal Aouaby aus ‘0TOZ Ul ()
900z JeaA [eosiy 01 Jorid ajgejieAe Jou ale saliobayed uonisod 18U pPaldLISay ®

V6E026'G6T$ 86V 0T9VTCS E€/C9/TCEC$ G9GVBISHZ$  T1SB69TESCS VOB666'95$  68T18365C$ £c0605/92$  181€50082$  059'650'68Z

21912918 162522 05 TEV'212 09 1I8'0TT'T6 076'969'8S SyLYT9'8E 665 76€ 05 TIT28L'LS ZIZEV0'69 090'€69'€S

2€6'SHT'TY 266'975'92 L10'€v6'L2 £20'156'7T 928'7L0'rT 82v'259'Ly 6TE'L6T'8Y 0€v'26.'6E €15'95T'L2 609'266'L2

e/u e/ 0/92v9Y 2652627 LITTETE VISELTE Tr8'98TE 0/8'E9V'E 1V8'E9SE 959295

e/u e/ 185'228's v6Y'0SH'y 898'268'7 805'556'Y 6502087 VrT'659'Y TEV'8Y8'Y 668'7.8'Y

e/ e 028'LLY'6T 1£6'202'9 18L'6v0'9 9v€'825'6E 8TY'80T'0Y 9TH'699'TE S627L'ST 50'095'6T

036'2GT'S0T$  GTZ'8E8'/ET$  SOB'GE'EYT$  G99'2Z9'6ET$  G80'8SY'0STS$  1€9'22/'0/T$  T/Z68CTITS  26V'vE6'69TS  9SC'€S8'e8T$  T86'89E'20C$
@ V00T @ S00Z ©9002 @002 28002 6002 010z TT0C Z10e €10C

THqIYX3

3]qe[eIeAR J0U - B/U

uosod 3au [ejo L

pajuisaIun

paloLsal [e1o
JE o)
uoneloaidag
90IAJS 1980

paroLsay

S1asse |edes Ul JusWisaAul 18N

.Om QUN( papuz SieaA |edsi{ ua] 1seT]
UOIISOd 38N JO SINPaYdS
$921N0S3Y J3JeAA 9|JeMausy

60



*ABojopoyiaw siy} Jo uoiealjdde ay) 1931431 03 paisnipe usaq aney pajuasaid sieak [easty Jauo |[e ‘sesodind sAljesedwod 104 6002

puUe 0TOZ ‘0 3UN[ PapU? S1eak 10} SIUBLWIBIEIS [eIOUBULY 3L} O} S3J0U 3U3 JO 8T 3ION Ul PaGHIOSap Se ‘SaolAIas Paj|Iqun UIeHad Jo Joedwil 3Ag|NWIND 3L 1031431 0} uonisod 18U 600Z 1eaA [easty patelsal AousBy au) ‘0TOZ Ul ()

¥6€°026'G6T $  86V'0T9VTCS  €LE9/T'ZEC$ GIS¥89'Gre$  TS8'6IT'ESC$  v08'666'9S2$  68T'T88'65C$  €€0'60G'292$  TBT'€S0°082$  0S9'650'68C $
€9€'0€9'T8T 76€'026'G6T 867'0T9'7TC €L€9/T°2€C G95789°Gre TG8'69T°€5C 708'666'95¢ 68T'188'65¢ €€0'605°29¢ T8T'€50°08¢
T€0'062'7T ¥0T'069'8T G/8'59G'LT Z6T'80G'ET 982'S81'L €56'628'€ G8E'T88'C v78'229'L 8YT¥rS'eT 697°900'6
26L'€92'T 882'€92°9 770'6T2'C €LT'S6Y - - - - €62°0T9 -
(€82'006'9) (506'8L2'L) (Lev'zL0'L) (¥8£'896'9) (€50'706'6) (e€2'620'TT) (€9v'189'21) (L6L'€ey'en) (£00'290'TT) (T18'8L%'0T)
(Gv1) - - - - - - - - -
(68L'T) - (s0¢) (£56'GLY) (661'292) Lv'11) (T2'28) (566'012) (oot'sLg) (zvv'vST)
(692'22€'L) (S8T'1EY'6) (56T'€60'2T) (TGV'66T'TT) (692'G22'TT) (G¥e'62T'TT) (0zT'652'2T) (912'€60'2T) (6LT'€2L'0T) (Tor'v60'0T)
(6€2'TL8) (551'865) (€8'9.8) (#€0'868) (#01'888) (80z'sT6) (5v9'998) (6€8°255) (205'605) (9e2'289)
088°0€ ore'9 YSv'ore 128'621 G258y 1€9'2G 829'T6 YET'EY 928 628'80T
61L'69L §60'vve'e EVY'159'S LE2'GLY'S ¥67'€26'C 650'GE0'T GT6'6EY 659'Gey 8EE'ESY 6£6'8TC
225'926'6T 12.'502°0C 892'6TH'2C €07'T86'6T 6€€'68E"LT 98T'658'7T 878'79G'GT T09'TS0°0C 298'000°€C 082'587'6T
6€L'TLT'SE G8Z'L1€'8E 1T0°087'TY 118°99% 7 T€C'V8L'8Y €/2°95T°05 192 vvE'6Y 6€2'STL'6Y 678°ZTV' IS 258°9YT'SS
12T 0¥9'7T 26€'€S'9T 6.€'782'8T 256'%20'TC 60T'86T'€C 2LE'ELOTT 8EY'LET'VT 72€'550'7C €95 VET' VT 819'T90°9Z
216'TES'0C €68'€LL'TC 8£9'G6T'EC G98'Tri'ee 221'985'Ge 106'280'92 €28'902'Ge G16'659'GC 982'812'12 ¥€2'580'62
950'288°€ 1256617 1GET6LY TI8TILY €88'9€0°9 0€€'TET'S 8857287 6£0°2G6'7 6v8'80v'S 9gC'TIL'S
68T'TES 1€8'669 28€'T5L T2E'€6L GGE'7T6 €LL'0LS'T 1GE'€89'T 620'98L'T GG6'000'C 296'7¥1'C
281'8.2 8€L'11€ 906'05€ ¥8€'G9E 20€'¥6€ 00T'€L0'T TOY'80€'T 859'99€'T 2G7'0ES'T 08L°265'T
266'221'T 866'755'C G2€'s29'C 2L€'925'T 882'80L'C 678'029'C 7€0'085'C 8779952 260'€9'C TY7'8€6'C
8€5'226'T TYS'€L6'T 6LT'0€2'C G09'09%'2 862'€99'C 126'285'C 008'86L'C L97'¥16'C G05'226'C 8T.'156'C
G85'68Y'TT ¥92'820'¢T 68Y'Sti'ZT 2IE¥8S'CT 966'098'2T 2¢6'€00'ET €V9'TTO'CT 7.2'6€0'CT €EV'TLL'TT L60'THL'ET
192'860'GS 900'€25'85 G82'668'€9 02T'8ry'v9 0/G'€LT'99 657'ST0'G9 60T'206'79 078'99.'69 TILETY'YL TET'TE9'YL
016'22¢ 85687 152062 8TLTTE TGEZ9S 758°89€ 9€8'68€ €vL0TY 0L7'¥Sv ST0'9%S
0G.'80L'9 0L7'0€9'L 0007616 G29'zer's 06.'T9L'9 062'%16'C 000'62€'2 825°2TL'C 00S%89'7 005°26%'S
6€L'TZ6'S 980'528'S 067'678'G G6S'TOT'9 920'8¥2'9 156'602'9 082'25€'9 6T0'TLL'D 880'TLL'9 G89'¥EL'Q
c9z'ove'ey $ 2l8'Lll'vy $ 8EG'G9Z'Sy $ 282'709'6v $  EVP'T09'ZS $  86E'7CS'SS $  €66'68L'GS $  0GG'C/8'6S $  €59'€0G'C9 $  2€6'898'T9 ¢
m ¥00C G002 m 9002 m L002 8002 6002 0102 1102 z10C €10C

[AICIERE ]

Jeak Jo pus ‘uoinsod 18U €101

J1eak jo BujuuiBag ‘uonisod 18U [ejo |
uonisod 18U Ul aseaiou|
JuaWIASINGIIAJ 3509 108foad [ended
sasuadxa Bunelado-uou 18N
sasuadxa Jayl0

sasuadxa 108foid-uoN

asuadxa 1salau|

uoleziuowy

anuanal 1BYIO

aNUBA3I JUBLLISAAU|

(sasuadxa) sanuana. Buieado-uoN
anuanal Bunelado 18N

sasuadxa Buijesado [elo |

uonerdaidsg
uole1oaidap a1048q sasuadxa Buiresado [e1o L

90UBULY UOERASIUIWPY
$32.n0Sal UeWnH
uoleUBWINIISUL PUE S|
wiaisAs uonoa|j0D
S32IAJSS [BIIUYDD |
suonelado

sasuadxa Bunetsdo
sanuanal Buiesado [ejo |
Jayjo pue sis|ney andas
S99} JUN0JJe MBN
SJBLOISND [eLisnpu|

SJ3WOISNI [e1dJ3WwwWod pue ansswoq

sanuanad Bunesado

‘0€ auNnr papug saes A |easiq ua| iseT

uonIsod 18N Ul ssbuey) pue sasuadx3 ‘ssnuanady 40 8|NPaYIS

$921N0S3Y J3JeAA 9|JeMausy

61



€ Nayx3

2IS'TES0C $  €68'€LL'Tc $ 8EQ'GET'EC $  G98'Tvy'EZ $  22T'98G'Sc $  T06'280'9¢ $  €28'902'Gc $  G16'6G9'Ge $  982'8/7'.C $  ¥ET'SB0'6C $
G9v'GEL 690'8€6 v16'GLL vy’ 1GE T€8°€69 Ly Lyl 105659 018729 295665 G68'9Y9
%S9 %E'S %9'L %0°€ %8'L %8'T %(T°€) %0'C %99 %99
L¥0'96L'6T ¥28'G€8'0¢ ¥99'6T¥'ce T6E'780'€C 162'268'vC ¥Sv'Gee'se 9TE'LYS've GOT'GE0'SC ¥2L'v89'9¢ 6€€'8EY'8C
90€'8e G¥6'8T ¥90'6Z 0TE'8T 0ST'9 1G7'S ¥8T'C 2678 1708 858'G
116°0C 99'ce 9v'Le €5T'9C 9502 ¥16'6T €V0'L 060'9T 886'0T ¥86'T¢C
889'8T 192'9T 20L'0C L€6'8T 2€T'0C veY'0T G86'TC 08Z'€T 2Iv'ee 86T'6T
0£6'62¢ ¥16'T62 20v'LTE 662°0TC €69'v9T 15205 ¥19'62 LY0'TE 1€0'6C STY'8T
656'62 29z'ey 98e'ey 88.'GY 606'0% 895' LY 65L'1€ 6LL'Cy GEE'vY vLv'Sy
1697y 81607 y12'sy €02'Sy 12625 08"y 850'2€ zer'sy LES'TY 0.5'vy
G0S'TS €02'79 2TT'e9 G2G'8S ¥2v'09 098'LS 8T8'€S 195'2S ¥18'GS GG9'/S
€2L'€9 0/€'29 9T€'89 L¥9'6L ¥70'G9 858'VTT 105'9S 9Ge'2y T10'T9 69.'6€
12S'TL 68508 G9z'/8 9/.'%8 G05'T8 €1.'28 182'06 618'T6 TECH0T 696'LTT
2T9'6€T 188'€LT 6v2'9LT 09%'TST 092'T6T €08'08T 09S'7.LT 689'€LT 108'08T G90'/8T
L66'€ET 08€'6€T L16'2TC 9ST'99T GE6'8YC ¥8G'G6T 102'922 89T'022 9T9'%8T T18'S6T
909'0€T 28S'vLT 6£6'GEC 2r9'92e 206'LTE 856'€2C 112'sve 20v'0vE 266'GEE 188'/G€E
796'90T 2LG'€0T S0T'62T S0T'0EE 156'69T Ly8'eee y12'vLe 228'02y 0ve'6ee 8EY'ESY
9/T'LL 666'2TT 6.0'6TT G8L'T6 €0T'€6T 6.6'€LE €62'88¢2 G55'G62 0ve'sLT €/2'18T
6G.'9%C ¥65'052 962'6.¢ 0ve's6e £€5'0ve 920'6.¢ 025'06¢ 888'8€€E £95'0€€ 102'08€
zes'eee 22L'29¢ v2e' LTy YEE'TLE 620'LET'T ¥0T'062 LTL'TTE LOV'TTE ¥6T'T8E 025805
T€L'6YS 0556 GES'Z90'T 9/8'6TT'T ¥20'0LT'T 129'812'T 0T¥'¥S0'T €99'PYT'T 8ET'9ST'T £68'707'T
€50'685'C 1981222 808'658'T GEL'996'T €/0'/98'T GG8'G/S'T 6/G'9ST'T 986'6YT'T 706'62T'T 0€9'222'T
89€'v9Y 990'S0¥ 20T'eey TSE'TLT'T 952'66€'T L28'T6V'T 8€0'6TE'T TOV'GEC'T 8v5'2IC'T L6E'STO'T
9/T'v89'T 6.T'TTL'T L02'60S'T 6TV'89T'T 009'v€2'T 185'V12'T 2r6'8YE'T 2LL'YSY'T 8€L'729'T 116'096'T
2ry'9T16 16.',96 2SL'TEY'T 6€8'8YL'T €72'958'T 905'€8Y'T 299'009'T 802'€09'T TET'TIT'C 22T'180'C
2e8'1€2'2 T12'T25'C EV6'0vL'C T12'8LL'2 €19'66L'C 195'v92'e G60'€02'E 716'198'C £78'€82'E 801'G0E'E
€26'T86'T ¥5€'2ST'C TTE'68E'C 6EE'EIV'T G¥1'899'C 66T'2IE'E 228'GIE'E 80L'9EY'E G65'208'€ vrL'vie'y
0r9'059'. $ 800'960'8 $ 092'TEL'S $ T99'OWY'S $  0/1'G88'8 $  995'€9G'6 ¢  LEL'TT¥'6 $ 016'269'6 $  €9.'000'0T $  28LT6G0T $
¥002 5002 9002 £002 8002 6002 0102 1102 2102 €102

SJUNOJJE 3|(1398]]02UN J0§ 3dUBMO| [ Bulpn|oul ‘[el0 |
S1UN0J2E B|(193]|09UN 10} BOUEMO||Y

J1eak Jouid Jano (asealdap) asealoul abejuasiad
S1UN022E B|(193]|09UN 10§ daUBMO][e BuIpN|oXa ‘[e10 L

jured

abeisod

SIBUOISSILIWIOD

0Ip INJ|NS pUE BULIOJYD - S[eIIWaYD
$aN} pue salll

sued oy

sa1jddns 901140

J31eM

lonel |

auoydaja L

uonesuadwon sJaxJoAN
110 [any/auljoseD

suonejal o1jgnd/eakoldwg
1efa]

aouRINSUI [IBUID

18ypo

J13Y30 - S[e2IWBYD
jJuswafeuew sp1jos
S30IAJBS [B21UYD3) BPISINO
9oUBUBIUIEW pUE Sireday
$33} U0I23[|0D
Anouos|3

siyauaq abutl4

salieles

‘0€ auNnr papug saes A |easiq ua| iseT

sesuadx3 soueUsIUIRIA pue uonrIadQ JO 8|NPayYds

$921N0S3Y J3JeAA 9|JeMausy

62



Jeak yoea JO UoIe|Al Ul 9A1103Y8 ale sarel ‘yiuow Jad suojeb 0og‘ . Ajerewixoidde Buisn JawoIsnd [e1IUBPISa) SALNSSY ®

%T'L %T'L %0°0 %Y %Y %07 %Iy %07 %LE %y aseaJoul jusoled abreyo AlpuoN
€9'vE $ 80.LE $ 80.LE $ €98¢ $ Szov $ 88Ty $ 85ey $ €Sy $ 00Lv $ S06Y $ (v 3B1eyo Ajypuow ejoL
059 00°L 00°L 05°2 00'8 058 00'6 07’6 08'6 02°0T yauow Jad sbreyp sseq
GL€ $ 107 $ 107 $ STy $ 0eY $ vy $ 197 $ 6LV $ %7 $ 8T§ $ suojjed 00T Jad abaeyd awnjon sesn

Sa)ey anuansy d1IsaWog

%E'T %Y'T %L'T %EY %60 %6'T %Z'T %L0 %Z'T %9°C asealoul abejusdied

219'G0T 85T'80T €2T'TIT Tv6'sTT 986'9TT y8T'6TT 855'02T v1€'T2T 978'zeT ¥50'92T SJUN0JJE JALISND
S13WO01SND JO JaquinN

290vZey $  ¢l8'llLvr $ 8EG'S9z8r $  ¢8ZC09'6Y $  erFT09CS $  86ECCSSS $  €6668.'GS $  09GC/86S $ €99°€05C9 $  2€6'8S8'T9 $ SI3LUOISND [€12IBWLI0D PUE D1ISAWOP [€10L
- - - - - - vEY'ET 0v6'Te €ze'ae €ve'se abpry anig
9.'92 828'12 §08'52 11172 - L1l YE6'EY 099'St 95T'82 - J8e|S
- - - - - - - - - L0E'9Y 19z|3d 159/
- - - - - - - - - 0€2'%9 18z]3d
807'69€ 196'621 9/9'€8¢ L19'T0E 9€T'TLT 897961 G86'T8 TLL'08 668'LL €58'76 [BI0IBLULIOD/IBYEM ||
00€'9€ 699k 1€6'2S G88'29 1101 €2l 062'86 181'80T 6v.'221 0TY'ovT suaune
€8Y7'67T 968'65T GG7'99T 609'59T SLTLLT LT0'08T 9T9'€8T TIS¥8T 188'98T TTL26T epaLBN
ovY'0LT 822761 109°2€2 276'952 91£'982 808'2T€ G2r'962 GGY'9€E 192'6V€ T€E'LTY 3||1As13pMOd
907'0LT'T 0v8'76E'T TZT'LT9'T 667'87L'T 2€T'686'T 892'200'C 666'671'C T6T'60€'C T8EVLY'T T20'TS5'C si0|Ae1 /18819
6YLLTE'Or $  PW'82S'Ty $  L€6'T8L'SY $  668'YPO'LY $  LOV'E08'6r $  L9€'G0L'ZS $  O0TE'7Z6'CS $  GEC'SBL'9S $  L66'EEC'6S $  92L'/TE'8S $ 3||1AuzRID
3NUBA3Y J3W0ISND [eldJ3WWo) pue d1sswoqg

7002 500C 900C 100T 8007 6002 0T0Z T10C z10C €10C

¥ 1qyx3

‘0€ aUN[ PapuT SIesA [edsl4 Ug | IseT]
SO11S17R1S BNUBASY JO 8|NPaYds
$304N0S8Y 31 9|gemausy

63



99T $

219'S0T

869°C $

89T'80T

819°C $

€CTTTT

625°C $

2r6'STT

085°C $

986'9TT

LT $

¥8T°6TT

§59°C $

895°0¢T

GE9'T $

yLET2T

86€°C $

928'zeT

€6T°C $

¥50'92T

TEE'TTS'98T $

670'6.L'T6Z $

86.'7.6'06Z $

€69'L2'€6Z $

TOV'€T8'T0E $

CET'VOE'LCE $

1¥9'%20'02€ $

601'LE8'6TE $

198'STS'V6C $

9TE'2L¥'9/2 $

9/T'GET'C €22'1S0'VT LTE'98C'ET TTV'12S'2T G0S'9GL'TT 009'T66'0T 00S'v€L'6 €/G'8E€ET €25'020'0C TTE'/86'LT
- - - - - - - 1€5'€89'C G29'OYT'TT 15€'912'0T
GST'9L€'v8T 96L'Lel'LlT 187'889'L.¢C 282'92.'08¢2 968'950'062 2€5'2TE'9TE LyT'062'0TE €1€'28T'60€ €96'165'G8Z 29€'102'892
GST'TEV'S8 96.'2.5'L6 18€'8TE'€0T 28C'TY6'TIT 968'999'v¢T 2€5'2EY'SeT LyT'060'7CT €L€'2LY'Y €96'90T 'Sy 29€'9S. 2y
- - - - - - 890869 8ET'009'T 99%'08€C SLL'vIT'T
- - - - - - 228'96V'T 92€'68L'C 879'G99'C €82°0V5'C
- - - ¥68'TEY'T /T6'80€'8T 925'L8v've TS9'T.G'9¢C 2TL'675'Se STZ'96E'vC 87,'281'€C
- - yOv'8TT'8 215'0TS'8T 185'GY8'8T 0T/'/60'8T EYT'L2E'LT L6T'€€S'9T 7€9'799'GT 965'85.'VT
€€6'079'T 282'GL6'Y L8E'T86'Y 8ze'L8L'Y 688'S85't 18L'9LE'Y YEL'BST'Y - - -
G62'9/8'G 870'T20'9 ¥58'06L'G €87'219'G TG2'99€'S G/9'TTT'S 868'9V8'Y - - -
6G2'G95'TC 8T.'€85'2€ €12'6.6'2€ 122'G55'2€ 999'292'T€ €G66'026'6C G12'825'8C - - -
829'9v¥'LT G90'LT6'9T 0v9'€L2'9T ¥86'€LL'ST 9YT'¥80'GT 862'99€'vT €0E'6T9'ET - - -
9/9'€vy'L 0EE'6YT'L €€0'EV8'9 662'72S'9 €29'26T'9 087'L¥8'S 22€'88Y'S - - -
996'985'L2 9T5'08€'92 6.0'GeT'Se G99'818'€C 902'65'2C 8YS'vv0'TC 87'2/S'6T - - -
TT2'€9V 185'G0V 9TE'GYE 162282 28€'9TC LSV LYT 8.€'GL - - -
198'296'C 860'T9L'C rT'18S'C 00T'88€'C 666'29T'C 861'826'T 900'G89'T - - -
928'vry 8ST'6.€ €TE'0TE §05'95¢ 0£L'18T 0vE'€0T 6ST'TC - - -
000'G6'86 000'GST'08T 00T'0LE'VLT 000'G8.'89T 000°'06€'S9T 000°088'06T 000'002'98T 000'0T.'292 000'G8%'0vZ 000'GY6'G¢Z
- - - - - - - - 000°'G6E'TL 000'G6E'TL
- - - - - - - 00000892 00000072 000°0£2'TC
- - - - - - - 000°'02.'6S 000'G8S'SS 000'G82'TS
- - - - - 000°000'0€ 000°000°0€ 000'000'G2 000°087'€C 000°006'TC
- 000'G69'69 000'G69'69 000'G69'69 000'G69'69 000'G69'69 000'G69'69 000'G69'69 000'GTS'¥9 000°020'6S
- 000'095'98 00T'0TE'¥8 000'G29'28 000'082'T8 000°059'T8 000'G8S'T8 000'G67'T8 000°0TS'T 000'G20'T
000°'09€'8 000°'02€'9 000'0ve'y 000'GET'2 000'000'2 - - - - -
000's85'06 $  000'08G‘'ZT $ 000'GZT'9T $ 000°082%¥T $ 000'GT6'TT $ 000'GES'6 ¢ 000026'%Y ¢ - $ - $ - $
¥002 5002 9002 £002 8002 6002 0102 1102 2102 €102

ERICIENE ]

JUNOJJe JBWOISNI Jad Sa|igel] wia]-fuoT
SJUN0JJE JBWOISND
swniwaid Buipnjour ‘1gap wue)-buoj [e1o |

90UENSS| PUOQ UO SWNIWaid
Buipunjal uo sso| paiiagep :sse

a]qeAed 1gap wis-Huoj jero
TS el

11 8Seyd uonel|Iqeyay ajoyuel pue Jamas ANAeIS)
] 8Seyd UOIEN|ICeyaY dOYUBIAl PUE JaMmas AlAeID
apelbdn 39810 uiging

2 9seyd Janry Apaay Jamo

Z 9seyd aoueAanuo) ¥aai) sablioas

T aseyd aouekanuo ysa1) sabiosn

C 8seyd 8ald J8plo

9310 sabios

T 8seyd »8ald 48po

Jany Apasy JamoT

901D ajdey

Janry Apaaypeal) Aysnig

abpn|s [euoibay

(., 714S..) sueoT BulAjonsy 8rels
a]qeAed spuoq anusnal [e10 |

81185 2102
s9118S 90T0Z
Buipunyay v0T0Z
$9113S 6002
Buipunyay 95002
$9113S 5002
Buipunyoy 2002
Buipunyey 1002

spuog anusnay

‘0€ aUN[ PapuT SIesA [edsl4 Ug | IseT]
198@ wua -Huo Jo sinpayds
$304N0S8Y 31 9|gemausy

64



8v0'980°,VE $  989'V8E'8L $ 29€'T0L'89C$  LIS'SWLL 0§ 29E'9SLTy $  69T'6€9'0L $  000'GY6'GCe $

65

8£9'00C 156'T 189'86T 156'T 189'86T - - T€0C
89.'€CE vEY'S YEE'STE vEY'S YEE'STE - - 0€0¢
606'2€9'T 185'62 CLE'809'T 185'62 2L€'809'T - - 6202
856'GL0'C vzZe'rL ¥€9'100'C vzZe'rL ¥€9'100'C - - 8¢0¢
0ST'¥T0'E 661'82T 159'588'C 661'82T 159'588'C - - 120z
188'0Z€'€ 969'86T G81'82T'E 969'86T G81'82T'E - - 9¢20¢
181'82¥'9C €1G'86C'T ¥19'621'Ge 192'29¢ ¥19'650'C 90€'T€0'T 000'0£0'2C §20C
6£9'860'L¢C §00'T2Y'C v€9'L19'v¢C 8vC'veE 7€9'266'C 151'980'C 000'689'T¢ ¥20¢
6TT'68T'LC ST6'96¥'C ¥02'269'€C 119'66€ v02'L26'e 8€2'/60'E 000'692'0¢ €20C
88.'8T.L'9¢ 6670V 682'8L¥'2C 265'€9Y 682'€98'C L069LL'E 000'GT9'6T (4404
¥6.'00€'8C 0v6'v92'S ¥58'S€0'€C 820'92S 758'008'C 216'8EL'Y 000's€2'02 Tc0e
YTE'9EY'8C 257'952'9 298'6.T'2¢ 670,85 298'6€L'C €EV'699'G 000°0vY'6T 020¢
609'929'8C 8ce'18T'L 182'G67'TC 009'9%9 182'089'C 82L'7€S'9 000'ST8'8T 670¢C
TE€'85.'8¢C ¥G2'950'8 11020202 ¥08'v0L 110'229' 0SY'1SE"L 000'080'8T 8T0¢
251'289'8¢C GE6'TER'S LT2'SG8'6T ¥99'79L 112'995'2 1.2'0L0'8 000'06¢'LT L10¢
§0.'G9'8¢ G€0'909'6 0,9'690'6T 112°'L18 0,9'605'C ¥28'88.'8 000'095'9T 9T0¢
001'65.'8C 669'88¢'0T SOv'0LY'ST 9Lv'TL8 S0v'SSY'e 6TC'LTV'6 000'ST0'9T ST0C
900'8/.'8C $  ¥19'000'TT $  ¢6€'LLL'.T $  06Y'¥Z6 $ ceczov'c $  ¥CT'9L0'0T $  000'GLE'ST $ ¥10¢

el 1sa193u] Tediourid 1s0183U| Tediurd 1s0183U| Tediurd RN

puess [eloL [eloL T4s T4s puog puog

anuanay anuanay

TE0Z 01 10T SAL3A edsld
(swiniwsaad Buipnjax3) uonehijqo 19eq wia] -buo]
$924N0S8Y J8Te\\ d]qeMaUsY

9 NqIyx3



LNqyx3

uoneBI|go 31AI3S 1G3P U3 O OT T UBU} SS8| 30 J0UUED B0IAI3S 1G3P 104 B|GRIBAR SNUIARI 38U ‘066T ‘9Z 11dY PaFep UORN|0SaY puOg aNUaNRY WBISAS Jamas 8Lt 0 (1) (W) Z0' UOII3S ‘Al BPRIMY Jad ()

0c v'e LT 154 6T 87T 97 ST 97 97
1S6'LTE'LT 200'TL6'ST 18¥'L02've TTL'6GE'TC 225'€98'2¢ 20€'v95'2e 9T9'676'vC 6€7'816'8C 2€8'612'6C GET'L6L'LT
0¢C e LT Te 6T 8T 97 6T x4 0e
1S6°LTE'LT 200'TL6'ST 18v'102'vC TTL'6SE'TC 225'€98'2¢ 20€'%95'2C 9T9'6v6'vC 0£6'€65'€C 7£9'528'8T 819'SL0'GT
825'9€€'GE 9TT'SZ6'LE L¥9°€06'TY 8EG'LSY VY 006'2ST'EY T112'956'6€ 892'90T'0F 198'TLY v v09'L1S'Ly L12'%9L'Sy
215'1€5'0C €68'€LL'TC 8£9'G6T'€C G98'TYY'eC 221'985'Ge 106'280'9¢ €28'90¢'Ge G76'659'Ge 98z'8.¢'Le ¥€2'G80'6¢
0v0'898'SS 600'669'65 G82'660'59 €07'668'L9 220'vrL'89 2LT'6€0'99 T60°€TE'S9 92L'TET'0L 068'G6L'VL T1S'6v8'vL
61L'69L €00°9LT'T 000'002'T €8T'TSP'E 257'0L5'C €TL'€20'T 286'G0V 9€6'v9€E 6.1'28¢ 6.€'L1¢
192'860'SS 900°€25'8S G8Z'668'€9 02Z'8vy'v9 0/S'€LT'99 65v'ST0'S9 60T'206'79 078'99.'69 TIL'ETY'VL 2ET'TEY'L
¥00¢ §00¢ 900¢ L00¢ 800¢ 600¢ 0102 1102 ¢10¢ €10¢

abeJano0d 1gap 8101

SpuOq [[e Uo 821AI8S 198Q

(2BeI3A00 1q3p US| Jo1UBS

SPUOQ UBI| J01U3S UO BDIAISS 108

82IAI8S 108P 40} 9|Ce[IeAR SanUdAal 18N
uonerdaidap alogaq asuadxa Bunesado :ssa]
SANUBA3I SS01D

Pa1LIISaIUN ‘BNUBASI JUBWISAAU]
sanuanal Buresado

‘0€ aUN[ PapuT SIesA [edsl4 Ug | IseT]
abe1an0D puog Jo 3|NPayds
$304N0S8Y 31 9|gemausy

66



8 Hayx3

1T v'e L1 124 (44 €z 0z L1 81 0T
IS6'LTEZT §  CO0TL6'ST $  8vZ0Ce $  TILGSETC $  ¢cSe98'2C $  c0EW9Gee §  9196VEVZ $  8ev8I6'BC $  cc86le6e $  GeCl6LLT §
¥00°079'6 LISE0L'L 2S8'S0E'TT VSE'G6E 6 68€720€°0T T8E%9T0T TrE'88C 1T 087°009°9T 227'960'9T 109°068'9T
€96'L29'L S2v'192'8 S€9'T06'T LSE'796'TT €81'T95'2T 126'66€°2T SLZ'T99'ET 866'4TE'ZT OTY'EeT'eT ¥£9'906°0T
ZI6'VYS'SE 0vv'ST6'8E 9GT"/GE'ey 808°0V8'SY VESVEG'BY 1S6'8VT'TS Ly1'86205 €L0'715°05 16v'1622S 060'658'5
eLT'eLE SST'865 6ET'2L8 T66°€LET €0€'05T'T 89'266 988656 v€8'86. 2097883 8LTCTL
B2 - - - - - - - - -
68L'T - s0€ 196'SLY 661°292 9Lv'LL 2'18 S66'07C 00T'SL€ Trr'ST
62'TLE SST'865 v£8'0/8 £0'868 01'888 802'ST6 5v9'998 6€8'495 205'605 984'455
6EL'TLT'SE S82'LTE'8E LT0°08Y'TY 118'99v'vv TEZ'V8L'8Y €12'95T'05 T9Z'vVE'6Y 6EZ'STL6Y 6v8'ZTY'TS 298'9VT'SS
12z 0v9'vT Z6E'EVS9T 6/E'V8Z'8T 256'720TC 60T'86T'€Z LLEEL0VT 8EV'LETVT V2E'SS0 VT €95 VET VT 8T9790°92
TISTES0Z $  €68'€LLTZ §  BEU'SETEC §  G9B'IYM'EC §  221'98S'GZ $  T06'Z80'0Z $  €28'00Z'SZ §  ST6'6S9'S §  982'8lT'UC §  vEC'S80'6T §
00z 5002 9002 1002 8002 6002 010z 1102 210z €102

o11el 1gap 03 sasuadxa [e10).
801AJ8S 1G8p [B10L

syuawAed edioutld
sjuawAed 1sa181u|

891A18S 398Q

sasuadxa [e101

sasuadxa Bunelsdo-uou [e10 |
sasuadxs J18Y10

sasuadxa 1oaloid-uoN
uonezIuowy

sasuadxa Buiyesado-uoN

sasuadxa Burrelado ero

uonerdaidag
1991dap 81033q sasuadxa Bunesado

sasuadxa Bunetsdo

‘0€ BuUN( PapUT SILSA [eISIH US| ISeT]

$150D 193 Wa1 -Huo 01 sasuadx3 L10.1 JO oley

$921N0S3Y J3JeAA 9|JeMausy

67



15AJeUY ssauisng LIs3auswedaq Buluueld Auno) ajjiIAusalo o

BJeWINST SNSURD SN

Jeak oy} 1oy snuwIad BUIP|ING MaU UO Paseq SJeLNss UoISSIWWOD Butuueld AUN0D 3|1AUSRID) (,
20130 sJoypny Aunod a|jIAusaI9 ;)

198' $ w8t $  p00'Y $ STt $ 182V $  evv'e $ g6g'e $  06v'E $ ssv'e $ 905t $ ejideo Jad anjen passassy

000'€6€ 000'TOY 000'20% 99T'LTY £ve'sey 61T'8EY 996'cSY 5.6'.Y 2€'65 v6E'voY uonejndogd

- - - - - - - - - - 8oue|eq 18P Uonebl|qo [eisuss)

vZT'SYS'6TS'TS  LET'SSL'ZSG'TS  SGPS'S/L'629'T$  SLV'OTT'ZIE'TS  €92'297'€€8'T$  /€v'729'80S'TS  669'GLE'0VS'TS  0SE'ZvT'Z6G'T$  805'89.'009'T$  €v1'T00'829'T$ () 8N[eA Passassy/
P00C 9002 9002 ©L00Z 8002 6002 N2 ©1T0C @CT0C »ET0Z

6 Hayx3

‘0€ aUN[ PapuT SIesA [edsl4 Ua | IseT]
soueeg 1ga@ uonebiqo [edsuss pue ended dad anjeA Passassy 40 oney
$304N0S8Y 31 9|geMaudy

68



evL'eye’'68  $  000'2S6'96 ¢ ¢/E'89Y'9LT ¢ G88'98E'ETT $  LL9LTC'ETT $  ¢0L'G8S'6CT $  €IS'€COWLT $  22T'89E'06T $  86T'GISC6T $  BEL'GECLI'TS
000'0€ 000°0€ 000°0T - - - - - - -
26.'89¢ 260'€5¢ 0£v'9gC 8v.'81¢C £86'66T 690°'08T GE6'8ST 000055 000'G8Y 000'GSY
628'T2C'T 802'2IT'T 8/2'v00'T L0v'888 2€5'29. 8EY'TY9 668605 089'2.€ G€5'62C 60208
000'GSY 000°'0TE 000'092'T 000'22S'T 000'22y'T 000'8TE'T 000'602'T 000'G60'T 000'GL6 000058
- - - - - 000508 000'GT9 000'GTY 000°0TZ -
000'CTL'T 000'209'T GEG'LET'T 8210002 9€/'G58'T STE'VOL'T LT8'7¥S'T €6T'LLE'T T6€'T0C'T 1G€'LT0'T
Y7E'€6L 8260 055129 G25'62S - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - 000'0SL'T 000'5.9'T
000'09T 000'0TT 000'SS - - 000°'06€'2 000'692'2 000'GET'Z 000'G00'2 000°0/8'T
- - - - - 000°'G6L'ST 000°'0£2'8€ 000'G8.'LY 000'677'99 165'805'€L6
000'095'9Y 000'G58'SS 000'G8€'8S 000'GEY'S9 000'GTT'99 000°'0TS'29 00007089 000°07¥'79 000°'006'G9 G8Z'69V'EVT
000'005'0T 000°'080'0T 000'029'6 000'0ST'6 000'059'8 000'GeT'8 000'GL2'vC L¥9'878'9€ 000'690'2¢ 00000602
000'0€ 000°'GT 000'020'2 000'GT6'T 000'G08'T 000°069'T 000'G0S'2 000°'G2€'2 000°0YT'2 000'GY6'T
29€'060'2 GT9'€T0'C 612'926'T 12€'8€8'T 12L'6EL'T Lyy'0v9'T €57'08G'T 0TL'vW¥'T 081'8¢v'T €28'10C'T
- - - - - 000'GEL'T 000°0L9'T 000088 000°00T'2 000°066'T
- - - - - - - - 000695 000'SSY
000'052'T 000°002'T 000'0ST'T 000°00T'T 000'GY0'T 000066 000'GE6 000088 000'LTT'T 000'T€0'T
- - - €62'2rT 625'078 Lyy'TeL 0TE'€89 000'G.8 000'GY8 000'GT8
000'665'C 000'GTS'2 000'G60'TT 000052 000°000'€ 000'G09'€ 000'G0T'E 000'G85'2 0000502 699'669'T
G6C'0V6'E 000'G.8'C 186'96T'9 000'G8%'2 0006222 000'G58'Y 000'GES'Y 000°0S2' 000'G88'€ 000'GY9'€
000'GEV'E 000°0¥0'€ 00S'9TT'y 00S'TTE'S 00S'€ET'S 005'9.5'7 00S'9ET'Y 005'€69'€ 000°08T'€ 000'659'2
000'056'2T 000'G28'TT L0%'926'0L 000°'0SS5'ST 000°'00€'vT 000'G00'ET 08L'0¥0'2T 000'222'TT 000'802'0T 000'GT6'6
- 000'G.2 000'GLE'C 000°0€2 000'G6L'T 000°080'T 000'GE6'E 000'G68'E 000002 0000
12128 159'T0C 90%'08Y 15607 0.9'¢le 981'88¢ 6T8'6GE 26€'62€ 260'L6C 66.'29¢
000002 $ 000'seS'c ¢ 000'zGE'c ¢ 000'08T'C  $ 000'000°C $ 000'0E8'T $ 000'069'T $ 000'0L6'C $ 0000ELC $ 000'GLYC %
¥002 5002 9002 £002 8002 6002 0102 1102 2102 €102

0T HaIyx3

sanifedidiuniy Buipunoling @
Jainseal L AUnoD al|IAuzeID ()

|elol

(p YOMISIA UIBIUNO Stied Jaddn

(@ PMISIA a1 afjAlebiL

(p RMISIA JaMaS % aild siojAe |

(p PUISI JIMIS 79 31 B]|IAUSRID LANOS
(1) BRIV BOIAIDS i1 9 Auosdwis

(p PUISI UONEaIRY

(o PHISIq 8114 3] j1Asdreg Weyjed

(p PMISIA 314 3||IAUSRID YLON

() B9IV B0IAIBS a1l uIpne

(o PHISI |00yds Aunod 8|j1AusRID

(p PLISIC BUBIY 3][1AUBRID
(p PUISIQ 2114 urelunoj Asse|

(» 1181 80110d B JaMaS ‘all4 NUBD

() ©9IV B0IAIBS 8114 uu| urejuno

( PMISIQ 89IAIBS a1 18)UdD Uospleuoq
(@ PUIsIg an sbunids 1ea|d

() 159 SIBJaARIL JO AND

a|j1auosdwis jo A1
(@ UIPINEIA Jo AND
() 19219 Jo Ao

(@ 2llIAUBRID JO A1D
(» U1 Urelno4 Jo Ao

(@ PMIsIa B sbuuds burjiog
() PHISI B0IAIBS D1|gNg BaIRg

@

‘0€ auNnr papug saes A |easiq ua| iseT

Buiddejaano pue 10a41Q - spuog uorebijqo [esuss buipueisino

$921N0S3Y J3JeAA 9|JeMausy

69



TT Hqiux3

PanIWo alojaiay) pue odas Jeak uslind 0} JUBAB|SI PAIBPISUOI 10U SIeak aulu snoinaid 1o} eleq 810N
€102 ABIN :D0DVOS PUE OAVD :82IN0S

911 %0 GE8'T JuswuIan0b [esapad 3[IAUsRID JUBWILIBAOD SN
98.7 %0 6T JUBWIUIBAOD 3[IAUSBID JUBWILIBA0D AJUNOD B]IAUSBID
T96T %0 680°'C |1e331 pue uonnquIsIp ‘sispenbpesH 3|IAuRIY sy fewadngs 07-19
096T %50 00S'2 S891AJSS UONINASUOI pue Bulisauibul 3[IAuSBID uonelodiod Jon|4
S06T %20 9€0'e JUETTEN I EITAUEET} JUBWIUIBAOD) 81BIS IS
/96T %L.L°0 002's (sued auifus 18[ 7 saulquny) Buussuibug ENLUEENS) ABisu3 39
G/6T %6°0 000'% Burinioeynuew pue Q7Y ‘sispenbpesH 3[|IAUSBID "2U] "edLIBWY YLION UI[BUIN
2€6T %0°'T 00S't S891AIBS U)[eaH 3[|IAUSBID Wa1SAS Ui[eaH SIoUeIS IS S$IN0J8S uog
TG6T %ET 08807 uoeINPa A|qnd 3[|IAUSBID Aunod aj1AusaI9 J0 191ISIA |00YIS
0€6T %¥'Z 52607 S891AIBS U)[eaH EITAUEET) WaISAS Ui[eaH 3][IAUSRID

pausi|qels3 [e101 JO 9% sqor 92IAJ8S /19Npoad JSTe) aweN Auedwo)

areq juswAojdwz

€702 Ul suahojdw3 1sabue] us
$894N0S3Y Ja1BAN 3|qemausy

70



%E'9

(revep/nob-sjg mmmy/:dny) ereq sononels Joge Jo neaing
(319 L1/A0B g MMmM/:d1Y) SISAJeUy J1LWIOU02T JO Neaing ‘8dJswwo) Jo 3daag sn o

(5921A1859] e}/S89RY/A0B SNSUBY" ZJapulyldey//:dny) ASAINS Alunwiwo) ueduswy ‘neaing snsusd SN ©

(/syes/urwpe/sidap/psab/sn-asz T 8] 1AusaI6 M/ dny) sjooyds Auno) ajjIAusale) @®
15AJeUY ssauisng LIs3auswedaq Buluueld Auno) ajj1AusalD ®

3]e|1eAR JOU - B/U

%S’ %S’ %8y %' %80T %56 %6'8 %2'8 %e'L ( YuaWAojdwaun jusosed
B B/ B/ B/ B/ B/ B/ B ley'0TS'9T $ veR'see’sT § (s) 800U [euosiad
B/ B B L€0'08 v18'0e  $  90'e S06'9t  $ €96'SE  $ 9er'9e 689U $ (s» Bwioou! [euossed eided Jad
B B/ BU 9e lg 1> lg lg lg Lg (@ 90e UeIpaN
876'29 69'€9 182's9 282'89 122'69 15002 900'69 rT'69 679'69 z8z'0L (o 1UBLUI0JUB [00UDS

%S0 %0 %S'T %S %L %E'T %9' %80 %0 %T'T umosB uonyejndod
000'€6€ 000'TOY 000'207 99T'TY £vz'sey 6TT'SEY 996'sSY 55'5Y v2€'650 v6E'79Y o Uonendog

002 5002 900¢ 1002 8002 6002 010z T10¢ z10e €102

¢T Hqiux3

‘0€ aUN[ PapuT SIesA [edsl4 Ug | IseT]
SonsIIe1S 21Wou0d3 pue olydesowsq 40 Arewwng
$304N0S8Y 31 9|gemausy

71



%00T €9 %00T 29 %00T 19 %00T 19 %00T 09 %00T 85 %00T 85 %00T S5 %00T 95 %00T PAS] [ejoL

'/u e/ e/ e/ e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u e/ e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u e/ e/u e/ %6 [+ Jeuoibay uowpald
%0 - %0 - %0 - %c T %T T %¢ T %0 - %0 - %0 - %0 - juowpald
%ve 144 %8¢ jor %8¢ joré %9€ [44 %8¢ €C %9¢ 174 %07 €C %07 [44 %1y €C %6€ [44 peoy ulpiney
%TT L %TT L %TT L %TT L %cT L %cT L %CT L %ET L %ET L %cT L Apaay Jamo
%0T 9 %TT L %8 S %S € %L 14 %L 14 %6 S %6 S %L 14 %0 - 39310 8A01D
%rT 6 %TT L %01 9 %8 S %8 S %6 S %6 S %6 S %6 S %6 S 9219 961039

suoiresadO 1S9

%0T 9 %8 S %8 S %8 S %L 14 %S € %0 - %0 - %0 - %0 - siofhe
%0T 9 %0T 9 %0T 9 %ET 8 %ZT L %T 8 %ET 8 %ET L %Y1 8 %Y1 8 Wweyjed
%8S € %G € %8 S %0T 9 %0T 9 %0T 9 %0T 9 %TT 9 %ET L %0T 9 881D I8p|1o
%9 14 %9 14 %L 14 %L 14 %S € %S € %L 14 %S € %€ 4 %L 14 3819 ulging
suoiredadQ 1se3
oe4 Ag seakojdwig suonressdo
%00T (404 %00T 16T %00T 4 %00T 08T %00T 18T %00T 261 %00T 96T %00T S6T %00T S6T %00T ¥02 [ejoL
%C S %2 S %2 S %V L %0 - %2 14 %2 S %2 S %€ S %2 S JuawaBeuew spijos
%6 8T %8 ST %8 ST %9 1T %8 ST %L €T %L T %8 ST %L 14 %L ST Bunisauibuz
%P L %P L %E L %€ 9 %t 8 %t 8 %t 8 %Y 8 %t L %Y 8 Juswiesnaid
%CT 174 %ET °14 %ET 14 %CT 1C %Y1 9 %L1 €€ %9T 1€ %9T 1€ %LT €€ %8T 9€ uoneisiuupy
%EE 99 %EE S9 %EE €9 %2E 8g %EE 19 %1€ 69 %EE 9 %EE 9 %2¢E 29 %2¢E <9 Suond3||0o/8ouUBUBIURIA
%TE €9 %TE 4] %cE 19 %¥re 19 %CE 09 %0€ 85 %0€ 85 %82 SS %82 99 %82 PAS] Mmojaq 8ss ‘suolessdo
%6 6T %6 8T %6 LT %6 91 %6 LT %6 LT %8 91 %6 LT %6 8T %6 8T Kioesoge
% U\ % 'ON % ‘'ON % ‘ON % ‘ON % ‘ON % ‘ON % ‘ON % ‘ON % ‘ON Jswredsq Aq seakojdwz
7002 5002 9002 1002 8002 6002 0102 1102 [414 €102

‘0€ auNn( papug SJesA [edsiq U] 1seT]
uonoun4 Aq seakojdwg
$924N0S3Y 181B/\\ d|geMausy




T8Y'€0S'T 168'C2S'T 181'7ES'T €€0'675'T 118'995'T TOZ'9ES'T YYS'ErS'T 020'2SS'T 9TC'eSS'T ETELYS'T S[eI0L
€65'GE - - - - - - - - - epnfes
€TT'0TT 98T'0TT 66T'0TT 66T'0TT 66T'0TT - - - - - s10|Ae L
’/u ’/u ’/u ’/U ’/U ’/U ’/U ’/U ’/U /86'70T [euoiBay Juowpald
LEV'OT LEV'OT LEV'OT LEV'OT LEV'OT LEV'OT LT¥'0T LT¥'0T LTY'0T - juowpald
2LT'Se 118'72 118'72 118'v2 118'v2 118'v2 118'v2 118'v2 118'%2 11872 BRaLBIN
TEV'V6 0L5'76 0L5'76 0.5'76 0.5'76 0.5'76 0.5'76 0.5'76 0.5'v6 - 8310 9N0ID
G5€'89 0v8'LTT 268'LTT 268'LTT 268'LTT v29'v6 v.9'v6 v.9'v6 900°20T 16v'76 Y9810 861089
¥S0'GET 2GS'GET 2GS'GET 2GS'GET 2GS'GET CTE'GET 9GG'GET 8vS'GET 8vS'GET 8vS'GET 38910 ulging
¥2S'6ET 655'6ET CIT'OVT 85€'09T 000'29T 000'29T 000'29T 000'29T 666'T9T 666'T9T 881D 1P|
092'v.2 182712 £28'6.2 £28'6/2 £28'6/2 229'6.2 602'G82 825'28¢ S6v'282 G828 Apasy Jamo
208'9T¢ £€89'9T¢ 09.'9T¢ 09.'9T¢ [ 1%474 298'sve CET'6EE ¥50'LvE 6T0'TVE 900°zve weyjad
0vL'€6E 056'86€ G95'86€ G95'86€ €12'68¢ 1v8'88¢ 60T'L6€ zae'0oy G8¢',6€ 026007 peoy ulp|neiy

A19e4 A181008Y 924n0Say 181N

¥002 §00¢ 900¢ 1002 800¢ 6002 0102 T10C ¢10¢ €10¢

‘0€ auNn( papug SJesA [edsiq U] 1seT]
(1984 u1) sanj19e4 A18A029Y 894N0SaY Ja1eAA Bulaias aul] Aliaeas) Jo yibue
$924N0S3Y 181B/\\ d|geMausy

73



"A9IN 0°62 J0 smoyy Ajrep Jeasy o} paubisap Ajuo si ssad0.d Jenowas JusiInu [ealfojolg sueld ayy ‘Jensmoy ‘a9 0°0v S
Auoedes uonedo|[e peo] paniuiad s) pue AOIA 0°0L SI S4HM PEOY UIPINEIA 83U} JO MOJ} JaUTEaM 1aMm paniulad [emoe syl .,
"PaNIWO 8104318y} pue Jodal Jesk JuaiInd 0} JUBAS|SI PAISPISUOD 10U SIedA aulu snolasid Joy uiseq pue yueld Ag smoj4 @

L6y L'6€ ¥'06 suiseq |[e [e10L
S'0C G§'ST 0'6€ [e101 uiseg
fa4 L'T A 981D uiging
0'S 1574 €17 981D 19p|1D
€EeT L'6 x4 weyjed
uiseg JaAly 9a1oug
9 9'€ 60T |el0] uiseg
ST €T (74 Jeuoibay uowpald
20 20 [ juowpald
60 L0 0¢ 9310 an0ID
QT 1T 0e 38910 s8b1089
S0 €0 L0 eNaleN
uiseg JsAly epnfes
9've 9'0C S'0ov |e101 uiseg
g9 9'S STl Apaay Jamo
18T 0'ST 0'6C () PEOY UIpINeN
uiseg Janry Apasy
Mead abelany panIwIad
( utseq pue Ayjioed Aq smoj4 €102 JesA [eosid
8y ov A4 18 144 6€ 05 Moy dead sbelany
114 Ge 9 014 Ge ve [oi4 Moy} abeleny
19 68 26 S8 S8 S8 06 MO} papwIad
¥00¢ £00¢ 800¢ 600¢ T10C €70¢

ST Mqiyx3

‘0E auUN[ Papug SIes A |edasid ua] 1seT]

(@9IN) Aeq 18d Suoj|eS) UOIIA Ul SMOJH A311198H A18A099Y 924N0Say J81BAN JO Adewwing

S924N0S9Y 431\ 3|gemausy



€8 8vT 9ve €€ 14 €5 v 8¢ 96 9

S€ 661 955 865 S09 6¢v 88¢ €187 T/8'T (4474

029 26L'T 99v'y 0zs'y el 8617 9¢¢ 84T 0S¢ 69

S€ cL £ 89 85 foi4 29 0§ €5 6¢

€eT 6EE Syl €17 06 95 80T TeT )14 0Ey

69T €9 ov 81 €1 6 - - - -

T2ET S9/L 88 869 T.9 [44¢] 119 €99 €27 c0L

114 €€ o4 67 05 ¥9 ve 8¢ or 144

172" 149 60T or 9€ €€ x4 8¢ 0€ 1€

8..'c88 299'90€'T $ 86v'082'T $ 8€6'0TY'T $ SIT'YOY'T ¢ 095'665T ¢  TO8'9T9'T ¢  VEBTEV'T 829v2L'T $ SIVITLT $

TES'V66 221'988 $ 0SP'YIT'T ¢ 6L2'T90'T ¢ SE8LCT'T $  89T'TEC'T $  LSO'6ET'T $  EV0'8E0’T 616'6.T'T ¢ 026'TVI'T ¢
¥002 §00¢ 900¢ 1002 800¢ 6002 0102 T10C ¢10¢ €10¢

8pIxoIp JnyIns
awnr

Aunjs swi
JawAjod
8uLoyd

(suoy ur) abesn [eaiway) suoiresadQ 1S9\

8pIxolp JnyIns

awnn

JawA|jod

auLoyo

(suoy ur) abesn fealwayd suoiresadQ 1seq
Jamod 91139313
abesn 4amod suoireaadQ 1S9\

Jamod 91139313

abesn Jamod suonresadQ 1se3

‘0€ aUN[ Papu3 SIesA [edsid g Ise]
SO11S11R1S SN0BUR||80SIIAl
$304N0S3Y 3TN 9|geMaudy

75



STT

41

10T

01T

Tt

Tt

60T

10T

SOT

10T s[ejo

7

43

6¢
1)

€T

7

0t
yx4

9¢
ST

T

0t
8¢

0g
11

T

LT
8¢

0g
0t

T

A
8¢

0g

o

T

A
9

0g

@

T

A
S¢

0g

~

T

- slojAe |
2z [euoifiay Juowpaid
- Juowpald
LT weyjad
L2 peoy uipine
T LRSI
45 Apaay Jamo
l 391D an0ID
39810 J19pIID
T 38910 s8b1089
€T 3819 ulging

~

Aj19e4 Ag s1awolsn) [erdsnpuy Jo JaquinN

19

19

¥9

29

19

09

65

65

65

65 S|eloL

1)

O©OMN~M—A LMo oM

- slojAe |
- epnjes
% [euoifay uowpald
- Juowpald
ST weyjad
8 peoy uipiney
€ EIRE
[ Apaay Jamo
2z 39810 3A0I9)
€ 9810 J19pIID
€1 39310 s8b1099
9 39310 uigIng

Aj1oe4 Aq suoirels duind Jo JaquinN

¥002

§00¢

900¢

1002

800¢

6002

0102

T10C

¢10¢

€10¢

‘0€ aUN[ Papu3 SIesA [edsid g Ise]
SONSIIeIS 489S [elaIsnpu| pue suonels dwnd
$304N0S3Y J81eAN 3]qeMausy

76



T16'22T'6v7 $  0.v'808'99 $  186'C66'09 $  998'0¢9'€S $  G9£'88.'€8 $  €G98'€€T'L9 $  GTT'9cC'6c ¢ GLV'SL6'L $  66ETOV'6 $  60L'€0T'Zr $  2.9'0L0'8C $ asuadxa 10afoud epded oL
9EY'€99°0VT 68L'T 2L1'60L'9¢ ¥19'928't 9/€'/€0'TT 006'G6T 6 9€0'2vS ZrS'SeT'T 959'055'C 6.0°,25'9T 219'0L0'82 SaAIasal [eussu]
€61'095'T 081'558 020'56 - - - - - - £€62'0T9 - sjuswAed |esapad
960'162'6 219'807 892'891'9 vv0'6TC'C zLT'SeY - - - - - - [ended panqriuod
216'868'66 9v9'69¢'T€ LT2'S26'vT LEV'T0C'0T G52'8€€'CT €56'2€6'LT L70'02Y'9 678'0v9'€ 865'59T'E - - Spaad01d ueo| BuIAjOAS) BJeIS
YI6'ETL'L6T$  Eve'ele've $  OTL'WB0'€T $  TLL'6L€9€ $  295°L16'6G $ - $ 290'v9z'zc ¢ ¥80'6ET'E $  GvT'6L9'E $  LEE99%6'VC $ - $ spasooud puog

s108loud [eude) 4oy s824nos Buipuny

S|e10l 7002 5002 9002 2002 8002 6002 0102 1102 [41V4 €102

‘0€ aUN[ Papu3 SIesA [edsid g Ise]
s108f04d [eaded 4oy s804n0s Buipun4 o 8|NPaYIs
$304N0S3Y 3TN 9|geMaudy

77



¥10°0T 1256 €97'8 9L'8 9eT'8 T.T'8 G609 685'9 6£2'9 €29'9 SlejoL

LEE'9 156°€ 1€9'9 v92'L 'L €19'L €TL'S vee'9 180'9 L0T'9 pajoAdaljuonealjdde pue
119'¢ 9.8's 928'T 4: vIL 8617 453 §9¢ 84T 919 [esodsip |ypue

SPOYIBIN Jesodsig

¥10°0T 125'6 €9T'8 9v.'8 9eT'8 T.T'8 S60'9 6859 6€2'9 €29'9 S[eI0L
106 116 685 [44) (334 [x44 - - - - si0]Ae
114 - - - - - - - - - epnjes
’/u ’/u ’/u ’/U ’/U ’/U ’/U ’/U ’/U 26 [euoiBay Juowpald
0L S €C 62 0€ 6€ TL S S 8¢ juowpald
102'T 8€e'T 696 190'T 92T 666'T 99T'T 89v'T v82'T 282'T weyjad
100'G 62Ty 0SS'e 118'€ 109'€ §TC'e 16L'C €€6'C 698'C 0€6'C peoy ulp|neiy
6 ortT €L €01 ki) 6 IZA <0t 72 10T BRaLEBIN
8GC'T §SC'T 't 8SY'T 992'T ove't 9L 990'T 698 Tl Apasy Jamo
16T ¢6T €ee 1474 6¢¢ LTT yAq) 60T a4 9SS 8310 9N0ID
120'T 616 90 899 60L G959 289 00S €28 eicig 18310 IO
SS €0¢ S6¢ 99¢ 66¢ ¥9¢ T9T 65T 99T Tt Y9810 861089
S9T 28¢ €8¢ 1€ 0.1 yxan 6€C 002 8G¢ €0y 38910 ulging

A1j1oe4 Aq paressuso spijos

¥002 §00¢ 900¢ 1002 800¢ 6002 0102 T10C ¢10¢ €10¢

‘0€ auNn( papug SJesA [edsiq U] 1seT]
(1ea A J3d suol A1qQ) resodsiq 0 poylsN pue payelauss spijos
$924N0S3Y 181B/\\ d|geMausy




Appendix

79



C."! Cherry Bekaert*”

CPAs & Advisors

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing
Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Renewable Water
Resources (the “Agency”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the fi-
nancial statements and have issued our report thereon dated September 3, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency’s internal
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropri-
ate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accord-
ingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow man-
agement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or de-
tect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combina-
tion of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material mis-
statement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal con-
trol that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and mate-
rial effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compli-
ance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Ac-
cordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Cﬁ@m‘ef Bolhood [P

Greenville, South Carolina
September 3, 2013
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